
 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda 
April 27, 2015 

7:00 P.M. – Regular Meeting 
Council Chambers 

Town Hall 
85 Union Street 

Roll Call of Members 
 
Acknowledgement of Meeting Notice 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Adjustments to Agenda 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a) Approval of the minutes of April 6, 2015 
b) Appointment of Jeff Hutchinson as Codes Officer and Local Plumbing Inspector with a 

term to expire on 05/03/2016  
c) Appointment of Carl Adams as alternate Codes Officer and alternate Local Plumbing 

Inspector with a term to expire on 05/03/2016 
d) Approval of a Quitclaim Deed for the mobile home on land depicted as Map 051 Lot 001 

Sub 000 Typ 181 
e) Approval of a Quitclaim Deed for the mobile home on land depicted as Map 045 Lot 003 

Sub 000 Typ 034 
f) Approval of a Quitclaim Deed for a certain parcel of land with any buildings depicted as 

Map U16 Lot 033 Sub 000 Typ 000 
g) Permission to accept and expend a grant from the Department of Homeland Security, for 

$2,350 to purchase a “Forensic Photographic Table”  
 
Items below require public input, so it is suggested they be removed from the Consent 
Agenda to allow for comments from those requesting Council action. 
 
h) Approval Poem in Your Pocket Proclamation 
i) Approval of a Welcome to Brunswick Gateway Sign 
 
Public Comments 
 
Correspondence 
 
Committee Reports 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
(a) Report from Northern New England Passenger Railway Authority (NNEPRA) 
(b) Report from the Brunswick Downtown Association 
(c) Report from the Downtown and Outer Pleasant Street Master Plan Implementation 

Committee 
(d) Financial Update 

1 



(e) Update of budget workshop and meeting schedule  
(f) Recognition of Government Finance Officers Association’s Certificate of Achievement 
(g) Report on nominations for the MMA Executive Committee and Vice President  
(h) Report on Growstown School 
(i) Report on spring cleanup services 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
39. The Town Council will hear public comments on special amusement license 

applications, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager)  
 
Special Amusement 
BATS LLC     Timothy Troy Kavanaugh 
D/B/A: McAvoy’s On The Green 

 165 River Road 
 
 Hung Alan Hoang    Hung Alan Hoang 
 D/B/A: Lemongrass LLC 
 212E Maine Street 

HEARING/ACTION 
 
40. The Town Council will hear public comments regarding amendments to the Municipal 

Code of Ordinance, Chapter 15 “Traffic and Vehicles” Article VI “Stopping, 
Standing, Parking” Section 15-76, regarding proposed changes to on-street parking 
regulations for the west side of Federal Street, which would allow a sharrow and bike 
lane, and will take any appropriate action. (Councilor K. Wilson) 

HEARING/ACTION 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
41. The Town Council will consider setting the Charter required public hearing for May 

14, 2015, on the proposed Municipal Budget for 2015-2016 and Capital Improvement 
Plan for 2016-2020, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 

ACTION 
 
42. The Town Council will consider adopting “A Resolution Authorizing an 

Appropriation from Recreation Impact Fees for the Purpose of Funding Costs of the 
Development and Construction of a Bike/Pedestrian Path Beginning at the Terminus 
of Pine Street and Connecting to the Perimeter Road at Brunswick Landing,” and will 
take any appropriate action. (Manager) 

ACTION 
 
43. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for May 18, 2015, regarding 

ordinance amendments relative to increasing permit fees for Street Openings, Street 
Entrances, and Street Obstruction, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 

ACTION 
 

2 



44. The Town Council will consider giving the Town permission to apply for a Shore and 
Harbor Planning grant through the Maine Coastal Program, and will take any 
appropriate action. (Manager) 

ACTION 
 
45. The Town Council will consider amending the by-laws of the Brunswick Cable TV 

Advisory Committee, and take any appropriate action. (Councilor Watson) 
ACTION 

 
46. The Town Council will consider authorizing the Town to participate in the              

pre-application process for TIGER grants for the completion of the Androscoggin 
River Bike and Pedestrian Path and the creation of a parking facility near Town Hall, 
and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 

ACTION 
 

INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE 
COMMUNICATION SHOULD CONTACT  

THE TOWN MANAGER’S OFFICE AT 725-6659 (TDD 725-5521) 
 
  

3 



Brunswick Town Council 
Agenda  

April 27, 2015 
Council Notes and Suggested Motions 

CONSENT AGENDA 
a) Approval of the minutes of April 6, 2015: A copy of the minutes is included in your 

packet. 
b) Appointment of Jeff Hutchinson as Codes Officer and Local Plumbing Inspector with a 

term to expire on 05/03/2016:    
c) Appointment of Carl Adams as alternate Codes Officer and alternate Local Plumbing 

Inspector with a term to expire on 05/03/2016:   
 

Items CA(b) and CA(c) are the state required reappointments of Jeff Hutchinson and Carl 
Adams as the Codes Officer and Local Plumbing Inspector and the alternate Codes 
Officer and alternative Local Plumbing Inspector respectively. 

 
d) Approval of a Quitclaim Deed for the mobile home on land depicted as Map 051 Lot 001 

Sub 000 Typ 181:  This item is to deed back property to the owner, who has paid owed 
taxes.  A copy of the deed is included in your packet. 

e) Approval of a Quitclaim Deed for the mobile home on land depicted as Map 045 Lot 003 
Sub 000 Typ 034:  This item is to deed back property to the owner, who has paid owed 
taxes.  A copy of the deed is included in your packet. 

f) Approval of a Quitclaim Deed for a certain parcel of land with any buildings depicted as 
Map U16 Lot 033 Sub 000 Typ 000:  This item is to deed back property to the owner, who 
has paid owed taxes.  A copy of the deed is included in your packet. 

g) Permission to accept and expend a grant from the Department of Homeland Security, for 
$2,350 to purchase a “Forensic Photographic Table”:  This item is for the Council to 
accept and expend this grant.  The Maine Emergency Management Agency has offered 
the Town a grant from the Department of Homeland Security for $2,350 to purchase a 
“Forensic Photographic Table” and camera for the Police’s crime lab.  Cumberland 
County Emergency Management Agency was closing out this 2013 DHS grant and had 
leftover money to distribute.  A member of the Police Department will be at the meeting 
to answer any questions.  A copy of a memo from Chief Rizzo and information about the 
table are included in your packet. 

 
Items below require public input, so it is suggested they be removed from the Consent 
Agenda to allow for comments from those requesting Council action. 
 
h) Approval of the “Poem in Your Pocket Proclamation”:  This is the annual Council 

approval of this Proclamation.  Representatives from the group will be at your meeting to 
provide more information.  Copies of the proposed Proclamation and additional 
information on this project are included in your packet. 

i) Approval of a Welcome to Brunswick Gateway Sign:  This item is for the Council to 
approve a gateway sign for Brunswick that is being sponsored by the BDA and funded 
through a Senter Fund Grant of $4,000.  It will replace the one currently located on outer 
Pleasant Street.  Ms. King from the BDA will be at your meeting to answer any questions.  
A copy of the design is included in your packet. 

 

4 



The Council has the option to remove any item from the Consent Agenda to be considered 
separately. 
 

Suggested motion: 
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 
 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda for item CA(h) and CA(i). 

 
COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
Councilors with information on the Committees they are involved with will share information 
with the Council and public. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
(a) Report from Northern New England Passenger Railway Authority (NNEPRA): This item 

is a report from Executive Director Patricia Quinn from NNEPRA to update the Council 
and public on NNEPRA’s activities. 

(b) Report from the Brunswick Downtown Association: Debora King from the BDA will 
make a brief presentation on the Association’s activities. 

(c) Report from the Downtown and Outer Pleasant Street Master Plan Implementation 
Committee:  Margo Knight will make a brief presentation on the Committee’s activities 
over the past year. 

(d) Financial Update:  Manager Eldridge will update the Council on the Town’s financial 
picture to date for the current fiscal year.  Copies of financial reports will be posted 
online, but are not included in your packet. 

(e) Update of budget workshop and meeting schedule:  Manager Eldridge will remind 
Councilors of upcoming meeting dates.  Please note that the date of the budget adoption 
has been changed from May 26th (which will now be a workshop night) to Thursday, May 
28th. 

(f) Recognition of Government Finance Officers Association’s Certificate of Achievement:  
The Finance Department has received a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in 
Financial Reporting from the Government Finance Officers Association.  A copy of the 
letter of recognition is included in your packet. 

(g) Report on nominations for the MMA Executive Committee and Vice President:  This item 
was discussed at your last meeting.  If any Councilor is interested in being considered for 
either position, this would be an opportunity for the Council to nominate you.   The Town 
is not required to provide nominations.  Copies of the information provided at your last 
meeting are included in your packet. 

(h) Report on Growstown School:  This item gives information to the Council and public of 
some structural issues that the school is having with some failed floor joists.  Due to safety 
concerns, the Town has notified the School Department they may not conduct the spring 
educational programs at this building.  A copy of a memo from Manager Eldridge, 
including photos, is included in your packet. 

(i) Report on spring cleanup services:  This item informs the public of the spring clean-up 
that is currently running through May 2nd.  More information is included on the Public 
Works website.  A copy of the program flyer is included in your packet. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

5 



 
39. This item is the required public hearing on special amusement license applications for 

McAvoy’s On The Green and Lemongrass.  McAvoy’s is a new application and they 
are requesting bands or soloists for weddings and other functions.  Lemongrass’s 
application is a renewal for guitar players or three piece bands.  Copies of the public 
hearing notice and applications are included in your packet. 
 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to approve special amusement license applications for McAvoy’s On The 
Green, located at 165 River Road, and Lemongrass, located at 212E Maine Street. 

 
40. This item is the required public hearing for amendments to the Municipal Code of 

Ordinance, Chapter 15 “Traffic and Vehicles” Article VI “Stopping, Standing, 
Parking” Section 15-76, regarding proposed changes to on-street parking regulations 
for the west side of Federal Street, which would allow a sharrow and bike lane.  This 
parking change would support the proposed installation of a bicycle sharrow on the 
east side of Federal Street and a bicycle lane on the west side of Federal Street (see 
enclosed maps and narrative).  This effort is the culmination of over two years of 
outreach and engagement by the Brunswick Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee (BBPAC), including consultations with the Town Engineer, the Brunswick 
Police Department, the Downtown and Outer Pleasant Street Master Plan 
Implementation Committee (MPIC), bicycle safety experts from Portland, and Federal 
Street residents and business owners.  To gain the width necessary to create the bike 
lane, the plan calls for the elimination of 13 parking spaces on the west side of Federal 
Street, between Green Street and the railroad overpass; this is an area that recent 
downtown inventories have shown to be among the most underutilized on-street 
parking spaces in the downtown.  Copies of draft amendment language, a memo from 
BBPAC, proposed parking realignment overview, a Federal Street Parking and Street 
Sharrow Analysis map, and proposed cost for necessary work are included in your 
packet 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to adopt amendments to the Municipal Code of Ordinance, Chapter 15 
“Traffic and Vehicles” Article VI “Stopping, Standing, Parking” Section 15-76, 
regarding proposed changes to on-street parking regulations for the west side of 
Federal Street, which would allow a sharrow and a bike lane. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
41. This item is to set the Charter required public hearing for May 14, 2015, on the 

proposed Municipal Budget for 2015-2016 and CIP for 2016-2020.  Since the 
advertisement has to be in the newspaper prior to the May 4th meeting, the Council 
needs to set the public hearing at this meeting.  By the time the advertisement appears 
in the paper, the budget will be available to the public, even though it is not currently 
available. 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to set the Charter required public hearing for May 14, 2015, on the proposed 
Municipal Budget for 2015-2016 and Capital Improvement Plan for 2016-2020. 

6 



 
42. This item is to consider the adoption of “A Resolution Authorizing an Appropriation 

from Recreation Impact Fees for the Purpose of Funding Costs of the Development 
and Construction of a Bike/Pedestrian Path Beginning at the Terminus of Pine Street 
and Connecting to the Perimeter Road at Brunswick Landing.”  This would pay for the 
construction of an access path for bicyclists and pedestrians, beginning at the terminus 
of Pine Street and connecting to the Perimeter Road on Brunswick Landing.  The 
estimated cost would be $60,000 and would be funded from Recreation Impact Fees, 
whose use was supported by the Recreation Commission.  The path would traverse 
land owned by the Town and the College, and connecting to the Perimeter Road 
provides bicyclists and pedestrians a route to portions of Brunswick Landing without 
having to travel on Bath Road. Access to the Perimeter Road would also allow 
connections to other trail systems at Brunswick Landing.  The Brunswick Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Advisory Committee has endorsed the project.  Copies of a memo, draft 
resolution, and other supporting materials are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to adopt “A Resolution Authorizing an Appropriation from Recreation Impact 
Fees for the Purpose of Funding Costs of the Development and Construction of a 
Bike/Pedestrian Path Beginning at the Terminus of Pine Street and Connecting to the 
Perimeter Road at Brunswick Landing.” 

 
43. This item is to consider setting a public hearing for May 18, 2015, on ordinance 

amendments relative to increasing fees for permits for Street Openings, Street 
Entrances, and Street Obstruction.  These fees have not been adjusted for many years.  
The Public Works Department surveyed other communities in 2014, and staff believes 
it is time to adjust them.  Copies of a memo from Manager Eldridge, the proposed 
language, a memo from John Foster, and the survey of other communities are included 
in your packet.  

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to set a public hearing for May 18, 2015, on ordinance amendments relative to 
increasing permit fees for Street Openings, Street Entrances, and Street Obstruction. 

 
44. This item is for the Council to consider giving the Town permission to apply for a 

Shore and Harbor Planning grant from the Maine Coastal Program through the 
Department of Agriculture, Conservation, and Forestry.  It is requested by the Rivers 
and Coastal Waters Commission, who believe this grant would assist the Town to 
conduct a feasibility study to provide deep water mooring access to inland residents of 
the Town.  This is in response to the Council’s request to conduct this type of study so 
the Commission can report back to the Council in 2016.  The request is for $30,000 
with an additional 25% match of in kind services from the Town.  The Town match 
would come from the use of the knowledge and experience of the Town Harbormaster, 
and the expertise of grant preparation by Sue Stableford and Bill Good, RCWC 
Members.  A copy of the memo from the Commission is included in your packet.  
There is also a link to the grant site if you would like more specific information.   
http://www.maine.gov/dacf/municipalplanning/docs/FY16%20MCP%20FINALGrant
%20Program%20Statement_33015.pdf  

 

7 



Suggested motion: 
Motion to grant permission to the Town to apply for a Shore and Harbor Planning 
grant through the Maine Coastal Program in the amount of $30,000. 

 
45. This item is sponsored by Councilor Watson and seeks to amend the by-laws of the 

Brunswick Cable TV Advisory Committee.  The amendment will be to change the 
Library Representative to a School Department member, and will state the staff person 
will be the IT Cable Manager.  The Committee believes this change better represents 
the structure needed, along with the fact that there has not been a library representative 
for some time on the committee.  A copy of the draft changes is included in your 
packet. 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to approve amendments to the by-laws of the Brunswick Cable TV Advisory 
Committee to change the Library representative to a School Department member and 
to name the IT Cable Manager as the staff person.  

 
46. This item is for the Council to consider authorizing the Town to participate in the pre-

application process for TIGER grants to complete the Androscoggin River Bike and 
Pedestrian Path and to create a parking facility near Town Hall.  As mentioned at your 
April 16th meeting, the U.S. Department of Transportation announced that $500 
million will be made available for transportation projects across the country under a 
seventh round of the TIGER competitive grant program.  The grant program will focus 
on capital projects that generate economic development and improve access to 
reliable, safe and affordable transportation for disconnected, both urban and rural, 
while emphasizing improved connection to employment, education, services and other 
opportunities, workforce development, or community revitalization.  For purposes of 
this program, Brunswick is designated as rural and, as such, is eligible for 100% 
project funding (i.e. no match required).  The Town may submit up to three 
applications, with each application requesting no less than $1 million.  In order to 
continue in this process, pre‐applications must be submitted online by May 4, 2015.  
Final applications would be due on June 5, 2015.  Town staff has identified the 
projects as the completion of the Androscoggin River Bike and Pedestrian Path and a 
parking facility near the Town Hall parking lot.  If there is an additional project the 
Council wishes to consider, it could be included at this time.  Copies of a memo from 
Manager Eldridge, along with the program overview, are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to authorize the Town to participate in the pre-application process for TIGER 
grants relative to the completion of the Androscoggin River Bike and Pedestrian Path 
(in the amount of $2.2 million) and creating a parking facility near Town Hall (in the 
amount of $5 million.)  
 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

 

8 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Draft 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Minutes 
April 6, 2015 

7:00 P.M. 
Council Chambers 

Town Hall 
85 Union Street 

 
Councilors Present: W. David Watson, Stephen S. Walker, Suzan Wilson, John M. Perreault, 

Daniel E. Harris, Jane F. Millett, Sarah E. Brayman, Katherine E. Wilson, 
and John Richardson Jr. 

 
Councilors Absent: None 
 
Town Staff Present: John S. Eldridge, III, Town Manager; Fran Smith, Town Clerk/Assistant to 

the Town Manager; Steve Langsdorf, Town Attorney; Anna Breinich, 
Director of Planning and Development; Tom Farrell, Director of Parks and 
Recreation; Linda Smith, Business Development Manager; Don Koslosky, 
Deputy Fire Chief; Jessica Factor, Human Resources Manager; Jeremy 
Doxsee, Town Planner; Terry Goan, Police Officer; and TV video crew 

 
Chair Brayman called the meeting to order, asked the Clerk for roll call, acknowledged that the 
meeting was properly noticed, and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Adjustments to Agenda:  None 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
a) Approval of the Minutes of March 16, 2015 
b) Approval of a Quitclaim Deed for the mobile home on land depicted as Map 051 Lot 001 

Sub 000 Typ 383 
c) Permission to apply for, and, if received, expend a MMA Safety Enhancement Grant to 

assist with the purchase of turnout gear for the Fire Department 
d) Permission to apply for, and, if received, expend a MMA Safety Enhancement Grant to 

assist with the purchase of an ergonomic monitor stand for dispatch  
e) Approval of games of chance for Knights of Columbus, 2 Columbus Drive 
f) Approval of games of chance for Elks #204, 179 Park Row 
g) Approval of MDOT Overweight Vehicle Agreement 
 
Councilor Millett asked Item CA-(g) be removed from the Consent Agenda and be voted on 
separately. 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor S. Wilson seconded, to approve all items on the 
Consent Agenda except CA-(g).  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
Consent Agenda Item (g) 
 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item and responded to a question from Councilor Millett. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
April 6, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 
 

Councilor Harris and Chair Brayman spoke regarding this item.   
 
Councilor S. Wilson and Councilor Perreault asked questions, to which Manager Eldridge 
responded. 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to approve Consent Agenda Item 
(g) relative to an MDOT Overweight Vehicle Agreement.  The motion carried with eight (8) 
yeas.  Councilor Harris was opposed. 
 
(A copy of supporting materials for CA(b), CA-(c), CA- (d), CA-(e), CA-(f), and CA-(g) will be 
attached to the official minutes.) 
 
Public Comments (This item was discussed at 7:10 p.m.) 
 
Richard Fisco, 2 Lincoln Street, spoke regarding the budget and concerns he had with the snow 
removal tractor, which he said did not need to be replaced.  He also spoke regarding the cost of 
living, which, based on social security, has increased by 1.4% in each of the last two years; the 
budget should be capped at that amount. 
 
Joe Ciarrocca, 532 Harpswell Road, thanked Councilor Perreault and Councilor Millett for 
expressing their concerns about the train maintenance depot at the recent public hearing.   
 
Correspondence (This item was discussed at 7:15 p.m.) 
 
Councilor Millett said that two people from her district were upset about the number of cigarette 
butts on sidewalks and at school bus stops.  She has spoken with the school department.  
Councilor Millett also asked the Police Department to enforce the law regarding no parking on 
sidewalks. 
 
Councilor Perreault said he received a comment about not having a biography on the webpage, 
but he does not plan on putting one on. 
 
Chair Brayman said she will be holding office hours at Wild Oats from 10 a.m. to 12:00 noon 
next Saturday.  She received a phone call from a resident looking for a full service gas station in 
Brunswick. Linda Smith, Business Development Manager, reached out and was able to direct the 
resident to the Mobil station on Bath Road.   
 
Councilor Millett added that the Shell station on Bath Road does performs this service one day a 
week.  She also discussed the Poem In Your Pocket Day which will be on April 30th. 
 
Committee Reports (This item was discussed at 7:25 p.m.) 
 
There were reports regarding the Teen Center’s fundraiser on April 29 at Gelato Fiasco, and the 
upcoming MRRA TIF Committee meeting.  
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 



Town Council Minutes 
April 6, 2015 
Page 3 
 

 
 

 
a) Presentation from Brunswick Downtown Association  (This item was discussed at 7:28 

p.m.) 
 
This item was removed since the Executive Director of the BDA was unable to attend the 
meeting. 
 
b) Update on the upcoming Frank J. Wood Bridge Projects  (This item was discussed at 7:28 

p.m.) 
 
Manager Eldridge provided this update. 
 
c) Update on the Public Hearing held March 25th on the NNEPRA Storm Water 

Management Law Permit Application  (This item was discussed at 7:31 p.m.)    
 
Manager Eldridge provided this update. 
 
d) Report on nominations for the MMA Executive Committee and Vice President  (This 

item was discussed at 7:33 p.m.)    
 
Manager Eldridge provided this update. 
 
e) Update on status of quiet zones (This item was discussed at 7:33 p.m.)  
 
Manager Eldridge provided this update.   
 
Councilor Richardson, Councilor Millett, Councilor Harris, and Councilor K. Wilson asked 
questions, to which Manager Eldridge responded. 
 
Councilor S. Wilson spoke regarding this item. 
 
(A copy of a memo from John Foster will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
29. The Town Council will hear public comments on a renewal special amusement 

license application, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) (This item was 
discussed at 7:49 p.m.)  
 
Special Amusement 
Byrnes Irish Pub LLC.     Joe Byrnes 
D/B/A: Byrnes Irish Pub LLC 

 16 Station Avenue 
 
Chair Brayman opened the public hearing. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
April 6, 2015 
Page 4 
 

 
 

Fran Smith, Town Clerk, introduced this item. 
 
Chair Brayman closed the public hearing. 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to approve a renewal special 
amusement license application for Byrnes Irish Pub, located at 16 Station Avenue.  The 
motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
30. The Town Council will hear public comments on a new alcoholic beverage license 

application, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) (This item was discussed 
at 7:52 p.m.)  

 
Full Time Spirituous, Vinous & Malt 
BAT LLC      Timothy T. Kavanaugh 
D/B/A: McAvoy’s on the Green 

 165 River Road 
 
Chair Brayman opened the public hearing. 
 
Ms. Smith introduced this item. 
 
Mr. Troy Kavanaugh, owner, spoke regarding this item. 
 
Chair Brayman closed the public hearing. 
 
MOTION: 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Richardson seconded, to approve a new alcoholic 
beverage license application for McAvoy’s on the Green located at the Brunswick Golf 
Club, 165 River Road, to include a Golf Course mobile cart.  The motion carried with nine 
(9) yeas. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
31. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for April 27, 2015, for 

amendments to the Municipal Code of Ordinance, Chapter 15 “Traffic and 
Vehicles” Article VI “Stopping, Standing, Parking” Section 15-76, regarding 
proposed changes to on-street parking regulations for the west side of Federal Street, 
which would allow a sharrow and bike lane, and will take any appropriate action. 
(Councilor K. Wilson) (This item was discussed at 7:53 p.m.) 

 
Councilor K. Wilson introduced this item. 
 
MOTION  
Councilor K. Wilson moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to set a public hearing for April 
27, 2015, for amendments to the Municipal Code of Ordinance, Chapter 15 “Traffic and 
Vehicles” Article VI “Stopping, Standing, Parking” Section 15-76, regarding proposed 



Town Council Minutes 
April 6, 2015 
Page 5 
 

 
 

changes to on-street parking regulations for the west side of Federal Street to allow a 
sharrow and bike lane.   
 
Richard Cromwell, Vice Chair of the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee, spoke 
regarding this item. 
 
Richard Fisco, 2 Lincoln Street, asked a question, to which Mr. Cromwell responded. 
 
Councilor Perreault, Councilor Walker, Councilor Millett, and Councilor Watson asked 
questions, to which Mr. Cromwell responded. 
 
Council discussion 
 
Councilor Millett spoke regarding this item. 
 
VOTE ON MOTION: 
Councilor K. Wilson moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to set a public hearing for April 
27, 2015, for amendments to the Municipal Code of Ordinance, Chapter 15 “Traffic and 
Vehicles” Article VI “Stopping, Standing, Parking” Section 15-76, regarding proposed 
changes to on-street parking regulations for the west side of Federal Street to allow a 
sharrow and bike lane.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
32. The Town Council will consider accepting the proposed Captain William A. 

Fitzgerald USN, Recreation and Conservation Area Management Plan and adding it 
to the Recreation, Trails and Open Space Management Plan for Public Benefit 
Conveyances from the BNAS property, and take any appropriate action.  (Councilor 
Walker and Councilor Watson) (This item was discussed at 8:11 p.m.)  

 
Councilor Walker and Councilor Watson introduced this item. 
 
MOTION: 
Councilor Walker moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to accept the proposed Captain 
William A. Fitzgerald USN, Recreation and Conservation Area Management Plan and to 
add it to the Recreation, Trails and Open Space Management Plan for Public Benefit 
Conveyances from the BNAS property, with the clear understanding there is no funding 
commitment being made by the Council at this time.   
 
There were no public comments. 
 
Council discussion 
 
Councilor Millett asked a question, to which Councilor Walker responded.  
 
Councilor Harris spoke regarding this item. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
April 6, 2015 
Page 6 
 

 
 

Chair Brayman spoke regarding this item and asked questions, to which Councilor Walker 
responded. 
 
Councilor Watson, Councilor Perreault, and Councilor S. Wilson spoke regarding this item. 
 
VOTE ON MOTION: 
Councilor Walker moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to accept the proposed Captain 
William A. Fitzgerald USN, Recreation and Conservation Area Management Plan and to 
add it to the Recreation, Trails and Open Space Management Plan for Public Benefit 
Conveyances from the BNAS property, with the clear understanding there is no funding 
commitment being made by the Council at this time.  The motion carried with eight (8) 
yeas.  Chair Brayman was opposed. 
 
(A copy of the accepted report will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
33. The Town Council will consider adopting “A Resolution Authorizing the Acceptance 

and Expenditure of Community Development Block Grant Fund for Projects to be 
Undertaken by the Greater Brunswick Housing Corporation,” and will take any 
appropriate action.  (Manager) (This item was discussed at 8:25 p.m.)  

 
Linda Smith, Business Development Manager, introduced this item. 
 
Councilor Millett asked questions, to which Ms. Smith responded. 
 
John Hodge, Greater Brunswick Housing Corporation Executive Director, spoke regarding this 
item.   
 
Councilor S. Wilson, Councilor Perreaul,t and Councilor Millett asked questions, to which Mr. 
Hodge responded. 
 
Richard Fisco, 2 Lincoln Street, spoke regarding this item. 
 
MOTION: 
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to adopt “A Resolution Authorizing 
the Acceptance and Expenditure of Community Development Block Grant Fund for 
Projects to be Undertaken by the Greater Brunswick Housing Corporation.”   
 
Council discussion 
 
Councilor Perreault, Councilor S. Wilson, and Councilor Millett spoke regarding this item. 
 
VOTE ON MOTION: 
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to adopt “A Resolution Authorizing 
the Acceptance and Expenditure of Community Development Block Grant Fund for 
Projects to be Undertaken by the Greater Brunswick Housing Corporation.”  The motion 
carried with nine (9) yeas. 



Town Council Minutes 
April 6, 2015 
Page 7 
 

 
 

 
(A copy of the adopted resolution will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
34. The Town Council will consider granting an easement to allow Maine Natural Gas to 

install a line across town property between Huckleberry Lane and Hovey Lane, and 
will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) (This item was discussed at 8:47 p.m.)  

 
Manager Eldridge introduced this item. 
 
Steve Langsdorf, Town Attorney, spoke regarding this item. 
 
MOTION: 
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to grant an easement to allow Maine 
Natural Gas to install a line across town property between Huckleberry Lane and Hovey 
Lane.  
 
Discussion of Council 
 
Councilor Perreault asked a question, to which Mr. Eldridge responded. 
 
VOTE ON MOTION 
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to grant an easement to allow Maine 
Natural Gas to install a line across town property between Huckleberry Lane and Hovey 
Lane.  The motion carried with (9) yeas.   
 
(A copy of the easement will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
35. The Town Council will consider reaffirming their position from the 2007-2008 

Budget not to fund social service agencies, and will take any appropriate action.  
(Manager) (This item was discussed at 7:52 p.m.) 

 
Manager Eldridge introduced this item. 
 
TABLING MOTION: 
Councilor Millett moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to table this item indefinitely.  The 
motion failed with four (4) yeas.  Councilor Watson, Councilor S. Wilson, Councilor 
Perreault, Councilor Richardson, and Chair Brayman were opposed. 
 
MOTION: 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to set up a Council committee to 
determine a process the Town could use if it chooses to fund social service agency requests 
in the future. 
 
Councilor S. Wilson, Chair Brayman, and Councilor Millett spoke regarding this item. 
 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 



Town Council Minutes 
April 6, 2015 
Page 8 
 

 
 

 
AMENDMENT: 
Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor S. Wilson seconded, to amend the motion to refer 
this issue to the Finance Committee instead of creating another Council committee. 
 
Ethan Minton, Program Director for the MidCoast Hunger Prevention Program, spoke in support 
of the Council funding requests based on merits of the requests. 
 
VOTE ON AMENDMENT: 
Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor S. Wilson seconded, to amend the motion to refer 
this issue to the Finance Committee instead of creating another Council committee.  The 
motion carried with (8) yeas.  Councilor Perreault was opposed. 
 
VOTE ON AMENDED MOTION: 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to have the Finance Committee 
determine a process the Town could use if it chooses to fund social service agency requests 
in the future.  The motion carried with seven (7) yeas.  Councilor Watson and Councilor 
Perreault were opposed. 
 
36. The Town Council will consider appointments to the Town’s Boards and 

Committees, and will take any appropriate action. (Appointments Committee)  (This 
item was discussed at 9:09 p.m.) 

 
Councilor Millett made the following nominations: 
 
Assessment Review Board 
Tyler Zamore for a term to expire on 01/1/2017 
 
Conservation Commission 
Sarah Carr for a term to expire on 05/01/2018 
 
Downtown and Outer Pleasant Street Implementation Committee 
Margo Knight for reappointment as a citizen member for a term to expires 12/01/2017 
 
Personnel Board 
Arthur Boulay for reappointment as a full member for a term to expire on 01/12/2018 
William Guindon Jr. for reappointment as a full member for a term to expire on 01/12/2018 
 
Recreation Commission 
Eric Foushee for a term to expire on 07/01/2016 
 
Sewer District Board of Trustees 
Doug Rice for reappointment for a term to expire on 04/01/2018 
 
There was another applicant for this Board, Michael Lawler, who was a great candidate, but there 
was only one vacancy available. 



Town Council Minutes 
April 6, 2015 
Page 9 
 

 
 

 
The Council supported the above slate with a unanimous vote. 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The 
motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:13 p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES.  THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
Frances M. Smith 
Town Clerk 
April 17, 2015 
 

April 27, 2015 
Date of Approval 

 

___________________________ 
Council Chair 

 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - B 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - C 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - D 
BACK UP MATERIALS 





 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - E 
BACK UP MATERIALS 





 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA -F 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 





 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - G 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 

TO:  Fran Smith, Town Clerk 
FROM: Chief Richard J. Rizzo 
DATE:  April 16, 2015 
SUBJECT: DHS FY2013 Supplemental Grant Fund Acceptance 

 

I was recently contact by Maine Emergency Management Agency with an offer of a grant from the 
Department of Homeland Security, for $2,350 to purchase a “Forensic Photographic Table” and 
camera for our crime lab.  Cumberland County Emergency Management Agency was closing out 
this 2013 DHS grant and had left over money to distribute.  I am asking that I be put on the Council 
Agenda at their next meeting so I can ask for their permission to accept this grant offer. 

 



PhotoTable - The Safariland Group Page I of 3

SEARCHH$AFARIIA]III
GROUP

.lrI:

HOME / PRODUCTS / FORENSICS / LAB EQUIPMENT /

PhotoTqble
MODEL: 4-2A70 | SKU: 1091077 | PART: 6-2070

Our new PhotoTable, developed by experts wi(h long experience in forensic investigation and

forensic photography, is created for most types of photographic methods within the forensic

area where equipment space and cost is a factor.

http : I I www. s afari I and. com/l ab -e qui pm enVphototab I e- I 09 I 0 7 7. htm I

-http : //www s af ari I aru[ c of,l ab -e qui p m e nt/ptrototabl e-l 0 9 I 0 Zl.htm I

4l22l20rs

4l'ZZryU r5



PhotoTable - The Safariland Group

Feqtures

Page 3 of 3

' 100cm x 65cm x 75cm (39.4" x 25.6" x 29.5"), total height including camera stand 180cm
(70.9,'). .9l"g"plate 50cm.x 50cm (19.7" x 19.7"1 for dark-fietd tighting. White opal board 50cm x 50cm (19.7" *, tS.l",1

Lights:. 2 x 100 Watt floodlight lamps (120 or 240 volt)
' 2 x 50 Watt halogenspotlights-with parabolic-reflector light (12 Volt)
' Lens tube with two different lenses_ior-projecligl light lJuitiUte torfnotographing

shoeprints, fingerprints.or indented writin! with lofr obiique light) 
I

' Two !"mp arms-for quick mounting in a vaiiety of positions
1 One lamp stand (floor model) for longer light distance
Available:. 

-91y." filter, broad band-space for fluorescent light. Yellow, orange and red barrier filters. Two polarizing.filters in sheets 30 cm x 40 cm (11.9,, x1S.T,,l
' Extra glassplate and mirror for recovering extrirsion lines in plastic bags

Authentic
Reviev;s

Reviews

*****
Be the first to review this product

PRIVACY POLICY COOKIE POLICY TERMS & CONDITIONS ISO CERTIFICATION

O Copyright 20't5 Safariland, LLC * All Rights Reserved

http . I I www. safari I and. com/l ab -e qui pm ent/phototab I e- I 09 I 0 7 7. htm I 4/22120rs



Nikon D5300 Digital SLR camera with Builtln wiFi, Gps and t8l40mm vR Lens - Bes... page I of 1l

Enlarge

Nikon - D5300 Digital SLR Camera

with 18-140mm VR Lens - Black

Model: laaOa 1 SKU:2067102 j

Custom€r Rating: 4.8 (41 customer revlews)

Protection & Services

Product Availability

Shipping: Usually leaves our warehouse in

1 business day

See when you can get it

Store Pickup:

Check Stores

Learn more about store PickuP

Package Deals

See (2) Package Deals That

lnclude This ltem

Special Offers

See (4) Special Offers

Cardholder Offers

See (2) Financing Offers

Ratings & Reviews

Overall Gustomer Rating :

4.8
(41 Reviews)

98% of customers would recommend this product to

a friend (40 out of 41)

Write a Review

Nikonusa.com Rating:

{26 Reviews) Product Features

AF-S DX NIKKOR 18-140mm f13.5-5.6G ED VR (Vibration Reduction) lens

Dazzling image quality meets modern connectivity with built-in W-Fi for instant photo sharing and remote

camera control, plus built-in GPS with mapping for geotagging and tracking your adventures. The new

24.2-megapixel image sensor captures ultrasharp, lifelike photos and 1080p Full HD videos, and a bright

3 2-inch swiveling Vari-angle display delivers beautiful views from any angle - all in a sleek and compact

design, including the outstanding AF-S DX NIKKOR 18-140mm Vibration Reduction lens.

Free Bonus ltem

Shufterfly 8 X 8 Photo Book - Shutterfly lDigital Download Add-Onl

Shutterfly 8 X 8 Photo Book

Usually arrives within 30 minutes, but it could take up to 8 hours.

http://www.bestbuy.com/site/nikon-d5300-digital-slr-camera-with-18-140mm-vrlens-blac...4/2212O15



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - H 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
 

Town of Brunswick  
Poem in Your Pocket Day Proclamation 

 
Whereas,  the Town of Brunswick has been the historical home of literary figures such as Henry 

Wadsworth Longfellow, Nathaniel Hawthorne, Harriet Beecher Stowe and Robert 
P.T. Coffin, 

 
Whereas,  the Town of Brunswick regularly acknowledges our place literary history through the 

naming of its public schools, its support of “Longfellow Days,” and though placement 
of historical markers in downtown streets reciting the works of our literary forebears, 

 
Whereas,  the Town of Brunswick is currently home to a vibrant literary arts community, 
 
Whereas,  Academy of American Poets initiated the inception of National Poetry Month in 1996 

and along the way has enlisted a variety of government agencies and officials, 
educational leaders, publishers, sponsors, poets, and arts organizations to help, 

 
Whereas,  in 2002, the City of New York created Poem in Your Pocket Day as part of the city's 

National Poetry Month celebration, 
 
Whereas, in 2009, the Academy of American Poets took Poem In Your Pocket Day national,  
 
Whereas,  sharing poetry encourages community building, 
 
Therefore, the Brunswick Town Council proclaims April as “Brunswick Poetry Month” and 
Thursday, April 30th “Poem in Your Pocket” day in Brunswick, Maine. On this day, the 
residents of Brunswick, Maine are encouraged to keep a poem in their pocket and to share it with 
others when invited to do so.   

Given under our hands this 27th day of April 2015. 
 
 

__________________________________ 
Sarah E. Brayman 

Chair, Brunswick Town Council 
 



The 4th Annual Keep A Poem In Your Pocket Day  
    In Brunswick, Maine   
 
Mission: 
 In 1996, the academy of American Poets designated April 
as National Poetry Month. Since then, many communities 
across the nation have added to the calendar a specific day in 
which people are encouraged to place a poem in their pocket to 
share with others throughout the day.   
 
For Brunswick,  Thursday, April 30th is Keep Poem In Pocket 
Day. Like last year poem lovers will wear a sticker with the 
event’s logo to identify themselves as participants in the poem 
sharing process. Wearing the sticker will invite people to ask 
each other to share their poems.  
 
In order to make this event as successful as possible, at the end 
of April containers with short poems and stickers will be 
distributed throughout the downtown. During the month of 
April poems will also be posted on the Facebook page “Poem In 
Your Pocket Brunswick, Maine”. On April 30th, people will put a 
poem in their pocket, don their badge of honor thus  fostering 
an appreciation for poetry.  
 
The Culminating Event: 
At the end of Keep Poem in Your Pocket Day, people of all ages 
are welcome to share their poem at an open- mic event that 
will  also feature local selected  poets reading their works. This 
event will take place from 6:30 to 8:00 at Curtis Memorial 
Library in the Morrell Room. 



Please join us at 
Curtis Memorial 
Lib  

DON’T FORGET TO CELEBRATE 

POEM IN YOUR POCKET DAY 
THURSDAY, APRIL 30th 

It’s as easy as 1,2,3 

 

  STEP 1: 
Carry a poem in your 
pocket Thursday! 
 STEP 2: 

Proudly wear your 

POEM IN YOUR POCKET 
 

   
   

   
 

STEP 3: 
Read/recite your 
poem if 

someone asks to 
hear it!  

   
 

 

OPEN MIC NIGHT  + READING 

6:30 P.M. – 8:00 P.M. 

MORRELL ROOM 
 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - I 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 





 
 

 
MANAGER REPORT A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 















































MANAGER’S REPORT - D 
NO BACK UP 
MATERIALS IN COUNCIL 
PACKETS BUT ON LINE 



 
 
 

04/01/2015 18:16    |Town of Brunswick |P      1
jhenze              |MARCH 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 09
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

10 Taxes                              
_________________________________________

 
111190 41101  Property Taxes   36,189,094  36,189,094  36,467,694.49         315.10                   -278,600.49  100.8%*
111190 41102  Prev Years Supplement            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
111190 41103  Deferred Property Tax     -200,000    -200,000            .00            .00                   -200,000.00     .0% 
111190 41104  Tax Abatements      -75,000     -75,000     -19,634.41      -1,739.90                    -55,365.59   26.2% 
111190 41105  Interest on Taxes       75,000      75,000      44,195.16       4,991.91                     30,804.84   58.9%*
111190 41106  Tax Lien Costs Revenu       12,000      12,000      14,592.69           6.00                     -2,592.69  121.6%*
111190 41107  Tax Lien Interest Rev       12,000      12,000      17,999.85            .00                     -5,999.85  150.0%*
111190 41109  Payment in Lieu of Ta      150,000     150,000     103,900.30            .00                     46,099.70   69.3%*
111190 41197  BETE reimbursement      157,895     157,895     413,635.00            .00                   -255,740.00  262.0%*
111190 41198  Homestead exemption r      427,247     427,247     321,993.00            .00                    105,254.00   75.4%*
111190 41199  Miscellaneous tax adj        3,343       3,343            .00            .00                      3,343.00     .0%*
111191 41110  Excise Tax - Auto    2,825,000   2,825,000   2,139,346.11     245,199.15                    685,653.89   75.7%*
111191 41111  Excise Tax Boat/ATV/S       25,000      25,000       5,673.75       1,355.20                     19,326.25   22.7%*
111191 41112  Excise Tax - Airplane        4,000       4,000       4,059.94      -1,226.79                        -59.94  101.5%*

 
TOTAL Taxes                        39,605,579  39,605,579  39,513,455.88     248,900.67                     92,123.12   99.8%

 
TOTAL REVENUES   39,605,579  39,605,579  39,513,455.88     248,900.67                     92,123.12

 
20 Licenses & Fees                    
_________________________________________

 
121111 42207  Passport Fees        8,000       8,000      10,350.00       1,250.00                     -2,350.00  129.4%*
121111 42208  Postage Fees            0           0          39.98            .00                        -39.98  100.0%*
121111 42209  Passport Picture Reve        2,000       2,000       1,680.00          12.00                        320.00   84.0%*
121411 42100  Building Permits      132,500     132,500     118,749.87       4,431.80                     13,750.13   89.6%*
121411 42101  Electrical Permits       31,000      31,000      26,109.23       1,121.12                      4,890.77   84.2%*
121411 42102  Plumbing Permits       20,500      20,500      15,210.00       1,095.00                      5,290.00   74.2%*
121411 42103  Zoning Board Fees            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
121411 42104  CEO Reinspections            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
121411 42105  Mobile Home Permits            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
121411 42106  Institutional Permits            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
121411 42107  Alts/Adds Permits            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
121411 42108  Comm/Indus Permits            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
121411 42109  Multiple Dwellings            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
121411 42110  Accessory Structures            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
121611 42200  Hunting & Fishing Lic        1,300       1,300         685.25          45.25                        614.75   52.7%*
121611 42201  Dog License Fee        2,502       2,502       2,528.00         147.00                        -26.00  101.0%*
121611 42202  Vital Statistics       45,000      45,000      40,557.20       4,588.40                      4,442.80   90.1%*
121611 42203  General Licenses       24,250      24,250      14,470.00       1,517.50                      9,780.00   59.7%*

 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=i2mOr8Q78lFLf9HwjnHF2bvjpDjOrsIglORtifgO%2B9vA6veOg5FnX6nJTzWg3HW8&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=0Gap%2BDf22CpFV1zWAPucAeoyTPbrJhDX/c0y%2Bh1/k259cthCbG9nNjAOV4x6CbaZ&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=2Qp5AyawGKF36o865III2IseP4GMh6/10E7GNnjZzRDjlNsSM83/IHq%2B7EadPxi2&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=JvsvM0EJb1KgCbZckKGrAmXGdvsXlQKUwU3PX%2B9PBAF%2BrIYv6NZ6zAH4g1LUKjaz&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Ym8VVXMIffj2oK8hwz3iGT97G7UTKlnlanhxcKPac16ZLiiBMIIGhAYpGf0pJAw9&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=e3umswlcl6eimgjtps0GUnVfYOX95GvV%2BuLtCH4xVF0dm7w7Snmc5sTSKKnIhPen&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=8s92E4YZrl1tUpxywHyzTA8UZMKM4sesgtpEHch83VNWJX9aSgcmCQ0G5y3tZFUD&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=aMAqDfkfeLM582ke07tFechi9vaGJAOtTlYAFryRIIs6%2ByEhHZTHwQyh5r/Tlk0C&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=cG/Av8v2nWI4XOd59P5GmAuWXvbeYSNg/e1D4KiZSgzsD%2B3Z3U3G/nDaW6gjZCMt&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=xhPbngyQoKCxz9%2B7jQdYaQECoJ059G2TrEIRRkHy/kLEXW/83h6wz4yZBPyXljS4&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=O3/Kr/KBeckp5TjDKHytFv3Xls1baJlMXUxF7EIw6KX6L62JGqaw3/9afpauonmQ&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=dRPHNyAI/81WX%2BOwpXKaEbReoBpBtPz60Alq7dXNs6Es5iU%2Be4PPQ9Gx8B%2Bdhh3F&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=qJivdb/emgeFucnNczHs7tzybq6eCP/Ly6RHRUAVLgQ0NI6qR%2B3RmelBXSuirx4V&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=6szbjRVYIi4ibVm%2BmexV2wF9AbA9DdlzfSm1M4H4ydWnaJU8h9TAelBTUzJxa%2BIT&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Hasx/Ik5RXbgow/Egzny1Y/FivwHp/LeXk9oW%2B1XnqaozlKSUeQwT0Tu4foptBwH&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=hO1jnFM6Hg%2B6UU%2BPk0i/kXBOvGFv0Fz9zhnslsuv7k8j1Qm%2ByG7L/LnPxS0vMziF&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=qZYHNKsQpPpDWQobSQyLVYG7yfiTrdOEqEm%2B3x/r3u87xUplWkIp87SCCkn4WACH&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=oZIsy9Ov9xv9pi2fzrWWLBOp5APKJXCGvIget0QuKv73P0K9kZ2u3XHXC6CvpS30&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=LaAXEIKPzBeNuJpY09/QSHwFEb3U9inLzmoWydRhdU68LandSw9gBS9CxZXun9jm&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=IfHjGEtDsScT0zqpgwH3wsVibo77XA5E70XkR3mCEk4Rl/Q4UhUuYPc1Vf%2BJ/nhC&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=2H2%2BqWsT9nhCbzYOeDqFq6m5b2l5VVFUFGNLYxHR%2BfWsBUpjY35S5RpjIOM5DKbn&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=c5eNbhRNTbVzIki9ijyVk/Pu11ZdhzyY5k3pfp%2BhqDiwrAWyUHRs%2B7j6yNMvlJ1c&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=CrvmViW1NFRvQJHnUfS7ocHEmLVSr6VFO2e%2BCwn56YGXbwEGXqEB14GTuWarRHCY&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ZggG6TvJp9EWdw%2BgvtpFPEotinM0pOYsKSYlCQqZnYDFj6gG9%2B4zzy4zLasAyh7D&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=THdTRxDataCWgKjk%2BO1i/6vqRasK6CP7lnabpeF0DYWNqoMGg2%2Bi0RyspR6frcht&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=277SmKnIFSLVJXCCLFV1rT0rRMJp19joaOZzbbUUaTyr2CSLeTotc%2BGPEYC4G3QZ&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=DP9YnM5DGg5WfQl0kfs3nW4z0jYqv3ETWkA2BUGJuubLU1UuTKTNj%2BZG%2BPmGNHOO&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=G9CxKnVGRdxOnBYvnLsYUIEGY%2B6EEF/w5r1%2BBt%2BEFxhzEywzESq480WX2yTeGAiH&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=iLYhQCaRXXKFEdunADaJj4dnrmO5RVxRkFfUd/vmFnQmcX4SzSWoxcnj7YENXPP2&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=R9k6KJ6UwCPo%2Bo6LDzxVLpgnd%2BJt79leQZrePeVlIt/6RV0gmtTaUMPItTCsLnb3&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=zsSwEvC1K48XR45tG3fuGH1wgkmtdiqqJRNgP2mKZ2kNplgVERorCmdnaRJQhNwc&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=pbSzIMIRTwlIP%2BtAc3GtdtsAzreyWRkCKoNb18HCHwVpd1CXBDpEO6y9V37gbvRi&


 
 
 

04/01/2015 18:16    |Town of Brunswick |P      2
jhenze              |MARCH 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 09
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
121611 42204  Victulars/Innkeepers       20,675      20,675         650.00            .00                     20,025.00    3.1%*
121611 42205  Shellfish Licenses       15,175      15,175       1,450.00       1,200.00                     13,725.00    9.6%*
121611 42206  Neutered/Spayed Dog L        4,510       4,510       4,584.00         236.00                        -74.00  101.6%*
121611 42207  Passport Fees            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
121611 42208  Postage Fees            0           0         386.47          19.99                       -386.47  100.0%*
121611 42209  Passport Picture Reve            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
121911 42300  Planning Board Appl F       15,000      15,000      20,395.09       1,967.00                     -5,395.09  136.0%*
122121 42400  Fire Permits          500         500         180.00          50.00                        320.00   36.0%*
122221 42500  Conc Weapons Permits          600         600         705.00         100.00                       -105.00  117.5%*
122221 42501  Parking Permit fee            0           0         175.00            .00                       -175.00  100.0%*
123131 42600  Public Works Opening            0           0          48.00            .00                        -48.00  100.0%*

 
TOTAL Licenses & Fees                 323,512     323,512     258,953.09      17,781.06                     64,558.91   80.0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES      323,512     323,512     258,953.09      17,781.06                     64,558.91

 
30 Intergovernmental                  
_________________________________________

 
131122 43505  FD EMPG grant       15,000      15,000       8,776.84            .00                      6,223.16   58.5%*
131122 43506  FD SAFER grant            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
131132 43103  Highway Grant Fund      214,000     214,000     197,188.00            .00                     16,812.00   92.1%*
131142 43104  State General Assista       24,000      24,000      22,710.23       2,315.04                      1,289.77   94.6%*
131190 43102  State Tax Exemption R       40,000      40,000       8,175.51            .00                     31,824.49   20.4%*
131192 43101  State Revenue Sharing      977,671     977,671     740,252.86      65,953.47                    237,418.14   75.7%*
131192 43105  Emergency Management            0           0      11,146.71            .00                    -11,146.71  100.0%*
131192 43106  Snowmobile Receipts        1,400       1,400       1,628.52            .00                       -228.52  116.3%*
131192 43107  Property Tax Relief            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
134546 43120  State Education Subsi    9,946,831   9,946,831   7,520,246.95   1,409,042.86                  2,426,584.05   75.6%*
134546 43121  State Adult Educ. Sub            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
134546 43122  St Fiscal Stabilizati            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
134546 43125  Education Tax Relief            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
134546 43150  Federal Education Sub            0           0      13,758.19            .00                    -13,758.19  100.0%*

 
TOTAL Intergovernmental            11,218,902  11,218,902   8,523,883.81   1,477,311.37                  2,695,018.19   76.0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES   11,218,902  11,218,902   8,523,883.81   1,477,311.37                  2,695,018.19

 
40 Charges for services               
_________________________________________

 
141111 44110  Agent Fee Auto Reg       50,000      50,000      36,551.00       4,526.00                     13,449.00   73.1%*
141111 44111  Agent Fee Boat/ATV/Sn        1,500       1,500         714.00          56.00                        786.00   47.6%*
141111 44121  Rental of Property            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 

 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=BRA61LnlK4wfM6WX2I%2BzDPiunXmL7bF1Ykc/rv9JG8cBmnMjPd2V0BgAL4MaB78W&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=SEwf0WmcwOPlu7c3CgZwx0AlkX21Hd0NvCPb7ahsSmFKxt5Bs6uye53JoyktTqXe&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=lNbu31uYTJf7ByZipKsyyQM4YjSoRwEs/kHsRkfpwkJnuB5pwNyRCPQiAsM6%2BoZY&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=x2FDsIXuwrZZ%2BK6v3avG6BnCCNOCF/9FMdvQTaaORDlnIPu/CnHMDQupZCnwCwOa&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=9eugZsHCwtz1Urtxpn3DuoB1W5E268q02ISm0xEM0qwWS%2BWjc42aTvJJhCsqQbJA&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=9GKhDia1hNxhOeYXmrfduMWY2Up2vDNjx93FlBdo2RI%2BZxCbphggGC5Baykn2yHt&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=G9prJ%2BJym7Ugo/PO4RsDRYX/7FXxqUYFGvFhVf0FH7SPk/WsyowIeTEqJLvFsXFI&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=f%2BMN1VJ4hIB7PRqQeWXWPIqGTvYkryo0N1g1y%2BsD7atVG8aqn%2B987GshVQoICXwR&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=vXiKJqvf%2BCWXCsEuHF7ph08/z1HoYmrnoY3nKQ%2Bn6iIK5y%2BU/ZjRMBKo/%2Bjr%2BwoL&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Y3NEvWKIuUnOZYyKBUL6m2TXyhBMatBr/XNhtaTmLWoKnCZfBYS6LEeO2u7d1ya4&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=nFJKa/PnQ8zn5A7YgF1j0k3hTliazesORboQA%2BJeRCnrre5GkLzJIzeDxuoRwpBl&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=%2BDre6JyqPe3F0MNzaXG4bR7Z4tZJ9jhoveyFnIVXOmoQIO%2B/7cJlQzgoI5Pun5g9&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=5CqST8gMG4kGvfkObQqVNvNY4XCdShIIez/PCqI1Vt/VyLa2tyBYjeZj7COvo0nD&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=rsKdVwHfaLDmHlfJvfhHr0OYb45Npggw18NVG2z2beYaERuCzZqcqMXQuyzCPXaf&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=%2BZ5EGFCatamfKUKU1oxW6Vu2S06ujPCBWHngiKPkNG0b05FnQf%2BKWFfbOshqfaIC&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=hPrDor3hqQ2WwwE1Pf8Tv2h%2BzxyYLZDfrDCPmqI4Rp6JMl013scp885DW5Amxchi&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=xSqe4maghL7/7v7hqXpqps3ipV1VFZovsbJbOalkxOmFo1UiKCFQQfPKZUxBkRTm&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=7/%2BYlYW6DzGvx4IRCR%2BLCuUROw5Xmp2a2A7pUwmQYLAkH5rGUyQQHv1Kgx3vnr7Y&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=uSrKuJwgvdqAc3qh0wFD0zadDZ6w8TMSzEE0gSkEQmhQYOVw031rRlgdMOryyGra&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=mGn0sEFv3tvnAGNigm%2BX5vbIO7Qj2JpeedB9EtgJRrdj5AflQpnJq0f1QnZHjUsu&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=iyLlWTKw0AgwD47VMhei6fX%2BL6wvIp/cBdqLEQBe0tJZFXucc9w1pV2sN%2BrJPwff&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=3i27RSHWdt5B2brMpqrCztxeNjxMjWyxaETFC0IBShtBt9XqoyyT/5F6SV8QR93i&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=f29rUEkKzCT3NhLsUR1T1P%2BDn6%2BCN80JbJXjkV1GFIzwRZ3vO4mgznhgcOtZp8Ba&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=7Yx8GK0wNm7kV0oiIpRyRoqMo7uxxyTqP6yTXQrG%2Bpaxmd2Y1N/uwOgaLm8Q/Ut/&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=VVRfESW6g5v2f2qUdprX57017mMtoERPAr5x97jL4OJHwNvHf6Vc/rBXQ8qpoBgO&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=UeugExsGel6qaJAficXeCtXEcekALrelmxBv1NPoyGV55zyo4Texp%2BnbhetsM4V2&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=2jeABfwbKtifi%2BfHVp1pJVKpXwBKcJLYECvTiY7b/%2BVEga6q%2B7J4N9l8Lb4oYmtc&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=IpsOokFkzlF9y/sM8OXgXSwk%2BwKrQ1L66ruZc%2B9/FciWW3huxgeThMvS0xwn/VLN&


 
 
 

04/01/2015 18:16    |Town of Brunswick |P      3
jhenze              |MARCH 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 09
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
141111 44140  Housing Services Fees            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
141211 44121  Rental of Property            0           0         900.00         100.00                       -900.00  100.0%*
141611 44131  Advertising Fees            0           0         711.54          81.70                       -711.54  100.0%*
142121 44155  Ambulance Service Fee      875,000     875,000     688,615.90      63,794.10                    186,384.10   78.7%*
142121 44166  Special Detail - Fire        1,000       1,000       1,951.84            .00                       -951.84  195.2%*
142221 44161  Witness Fees        3,000       3,000       3,100.00         200.00                       -100.00  103.3%*
142221 44162  Police Reports        3,600       3,600       3,274.00            .00                        326.00   90.9%*
142221 44163  School Resource Offic       84,000      84,000      84,000.00            .00                           .00  100.0%*
142221 44164  Youth Aid Officer Rei            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
142221 44165  Special Detail - Poli        1,000       1,000      40,901.00         738.00                    -39,901.00 4090.1%*
142221 44167  Dispatch Services fee      141,500     141,500     108,513.44      10,994.27                     32,986.56   76.7%*
143131 44174  PW Labor & Materials            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
143431 44175  Recycling Revenue       25,000      25,000      14,790.05       1,762.60                     10,209.95   59.2%*
144545 44100  School Tuition, etc      137,000     137,000      89,157.96       1,623.01                     47,842.04   65.1%*
145051 44121  Rental of Property            0           0         800.00            .00                       -800.00  100.0%*
145051 44185  Parks            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
145051 44187  Coffin Pond            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
145051 44189  Recreation Outside Se            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 

 
TOTAL Charges for services          1,322,600   1,322,600   1,073,980.73      83,875.68                    248,619.27   81.2%

 
TOTAL REVENUES    1,322,600   1,322,600   1,073,980.73      83,875.68                    248,619.27

 
50 Fines & Penalties                  
_________________________________________

 
151621 45103  Unlicensed Dog Fines        6,250       6,250       8,525.00       2,700.00                     -2,275.00  136.4%*
152121 45104  False Alarm Fire        1,000       1,000         325.00            .00                        675.00   32.5%*
152121 45107  Fire Code Violation F            0           0         100.00            .00                       -100.00  100.0%*
152221 45100  Ordinance Fines          600         600       1,629.00         210.00                     -1,029.00  271.5%*
152221 45101  Parking Tickets       20,000      20,000      31,705.00       5,000.00                    -11,705.00  158.5%*
152221 45102  Leash Law Fines          600         600          50.00            .00                        550.00    8.3%*
152221 45105  False Alarm Police          300         300          10.00            .00                        290.00    3.3%*
152221 45106  Restitution            0           0       1,319.27            .00                     -1,319.27  100.0%*

 
TOTAL Fines & Penalties                28,750      28,750      43,663.27       7,910.00                    -14,913.27  151.9%

 
TOTAL REVENUES       28,750      28,750      43,663.27       7,910.00                    -14,913.27

 
60 Interest earned                    
_________________________________________

 
161193 46100  Interest Earned       40,000      40,000       6,796.17         778.99                     33,203.83   17.0%*

 
TOTAL Interest earned                  40,000      40,000       6,796.17         778.99                     33,203.83   17.0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES       40,000      40,000       6,796.17         778.99                     33,203.83

 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=UXk2P3DPbgcH/yewd7R3NfjImRkzI5CHsneU34AmdiHp0T0aEg1VXLaD4bfZFDiE&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=hRapehwwcgFLWkCaRDELg4cOkXvoxF9ZEuT4GtR3L%2B0aWZEVMmVFB9zgkfc/6hi5&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=iKpjYAK6P6ifDTHCpFbIQWjqCtKgRB1yNXLi7F79YjFKB2se%2BIS/iSq5bIxxmIa9&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=HPXtp/vLTyikE/A3FTUj/XTwFmXZQ3/9Bcs5uhXHNAGi30AAL%2B4IrikG9IMMIiwp&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=GQUYV8PaMRjLGovLekvqpUFmOcZ95jP0Y5rrFt6CiADfYhRPkpEOSrh0OK//3rq4&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=B5kA5ytbGOQNwoS0Bb%2B6Odqtxoixtn05WglL8ZFDla5VHk%2BzFlQQdq5l%2BjXYNEAH&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=7EgqI2tQEApPD4ld7FAh/Hz%2BXDOMsjwoxMbkIUU1rCSArbPiLBQy7IEol7WTRBE6&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=dlErrrK6WLJepCssKZuhR%2B%2BgTxzX4Ig6axku6rA00GJfE/DnEUgRG2f1bcJ8LVj2&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=aUaCL3PyKsxdtlwFIIu0gsAfHKuo9qtndD%2BJam7JJgvVlOqqyjUGvytP8SjHvMqf&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=lu/4/ZyfgX1aYli2A/9YN2xtINZAsXMI9qt%2BaRubW6Lcm7a/SZceqcA6mdO0M8g8&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=JHdNGj9Fd%2B7c4GUHlrRvHgYomSOwO8rPA2T86QVcYowypyyPnNNvMgj%2B2P5KvLwX&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=oaocFJIootYYifMNBmfd03B8aw3AHpS2ACcGrNHrCuH%2Ba7pumOLt9BRLy2GzlZyd&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=f330pwSh4j%2B5gpQvy%2BKTV9sFDZZjimN6mC3At6%2BCjjCsAlMlsgXEsyc%2BfZAaCM4q&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=AgjbfJ2NXs4rt2nvdt1Pn6XsOHvNq0NDqx2KjhbEy4gfyrDb1NYty0MtDVWn2Pgv&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=0d8yIBkrkkDMiRZUKN3aUjqct/QKdmjF4c%2BzKNQqtX9g1CHELus5azwBZYeMAYY5&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=WiYWVAY26yLqdhleCdIZaUx4mPUQ4UK3x7GIYZrqoCveZNmm4%2BsqN6xGh83%2BAqD9&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=S0lWOK2xEKUIcqC07ZukIHGWPTWO8vq4jWjk5trehr%2BLmxkAC1uvCCuyYH/9WUK0&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=dvQPavd1X%2BXM83yJziyWOzgbqgNTQeqZ1tUZoADwll1KD4lbjR5Bx3h%2BrC5wiTKC&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=AxO7wNUOuZNhdBaI5otHxcaIsy5amCsnqR1kEZ1DxEMr2T8aRDpZW2ILOQsVqMPy&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=q4wyEhfOCcqaHQQSxnGeXvN3UYIYnxDDaiTvqF/0LnKxM0jCfKQX5nk%2BFuiM0me4&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=NME0J/1U8BBsjM4Pi6rm7UDRKgKKtTXVSjZjmajv2/qp6dV/uRKUHIcmFs%2Bima5l&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=IY5r8Pc8wAv2pFTyOu5L70f7GTAsY8jm%2B2a6WQzW5cEb/PbzxKdr%2BUXth6RfLZrR&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=o/81/ymD5GDVbPvIIIf9d7Fkz95IepHEgIZJMp7IihPYQdENKPnjan6hBtqLv4ed&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=uxBFDcAa32cclEUCpXNZL1l1sQDbFVVBd43BS6NCUoauo0ZjvjbCqtdP3nV94PUb&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=rm9TJhrj2nRsQj8bWP76N8Vhr9qb0T3qL0cj5AsZUNu/Lbw3IU5VHPXtW98pS2Bo&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=iOrpN%2BpNUg/WSPjpr1YsNNULJDzP3W1AFHJZ3liu/VSIWAT81R28rs1W65UCk62k&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=QN2LNz0kcdP5k64Fsy9uvgMyD82Nne7kmMZi/SeDDMXgmHJRHQgts3a4ED9dzMpk&


 
 
 

04/01/2015 18:16    |Town of Brunswick |P      4
jhenze              |MARCH 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 09
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

70 Donations                          
_________________________________________

 
171952 47000  BDC Contrib to Econ D       94,000      94,000      94,000.00            .00                           .00  100.0%*
171952 47001  MRRA - Eco Dev positi            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
171952 47002  MRRA - MCOG DUES       15,000      15,000            .00            .00                     15,000.00     .0%*

 
TOTAL Donations                       109,000     109,000      94,000.00            .00                     15,000.00   86.2%

 
TOTAL REVENUES      109,000     109,000      94,000.00            .00                     15,000.00

 
80 Use of fund balance                
_________________________________________

 
181100 48000  Unapprop General Fund    1,000,000   1,200,000            .00            .00                  1,200,000.00     .0%*
181100 48001  Bal of State Revenue       50,000      50,000            .00            .00                     50,000.00     .0%*
181100 48002  Highway Grant Fund Ba            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
181100 48003  Property Tax Relief B            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
184500 48003  Allocation for School      185,000     185,000            .00            .00                    185,000.00     .0%*
184500 48004  School Balance Forwar    2,810,000   2,810,000            .00            .00                  2,810,000.00     .0%*
184500 48005  Restricted-Sch Bond P      342,000     342,000            .00            .00                    342,000.00     .0%*

 
TOTAL Use of fund balance           4,387,000   4,587,000            .00            .00                  4,587,000.00     .0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES    4,387,000   4,587,000            .00            .00                  4,587,000.00

 
90 Other                              
_________________________________________

 
191011 49000  Administration Miscel            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
191111 46200  A/R Late Fees            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
191111 49000  Finance Miscellaneous        1,000       1,000       2,662.41         361.11                     -1,662.41  266.2%*
191111 49101  Workers Comp Dividend            0           0      16,160.00            .00                    -16,160.00  100.0%*
191111 49102  Energy Rebate            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
191111 49104  Property & Casualty D            0           0       9,267.00            .00                     -9,267.00  100.0%*
191111 49105  Postage & Handling            0           0       2,027.02         306.00                     -2,027.02  100.0%*
191111 49106  W/C Proceeds            0           0       5,570.08            .00                     -5,570.08  100.0%*
191111 49210  Insurance Proceeds            0           0         375.07         375.07                       -375.07  100.0%*
191111 49211  Incident Recovery            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
191192 49100  Cable Television      225,000     225,000     122,988.13            .00                    102,011.87   54.7%*
191194 49150  Gen Govt Asset Sales            0           0         150.00            .00                       -150.00  100.0%*
191311 49000  Assessing Miscellaneo            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
191411 49000  Codes Miscellaneous            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 

 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=aBTD5mGp90cTvWHJatz87lA3zkYPnBfCmpemtSSZROSvbBGO4R03r58ynhOFRyam&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=uhYLGrKVJw%2BYn8BBNwCZCiMDoLd%2BTky%2BZ0LZffKYWRHR42FbSYRRrRYG3nlJnsIU&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=QOFL5/ZdWtzd2p%2BV5gaTxHrF5jeqO9fKJv8cxRdMxmcWkHvihCnorCz4fam57/gd&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=mLQ766gupl6hAA/IU%2BHbcCe3Hz2M1%2BjIJDckxdIFUB56DthESJjP%2BnfKRHHIBpVi&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=XJRbYueGEhxJpjQw6QW/XSXvo2x3dc6QBm0V74Y/MuQVfMCSWU8e2edLxyhPgQ6g&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=gdZAeHuH2zk3xRipRrXff4GeFxjLZKRDbie34Cp4kqpMd/eSQ/8Ks72lWTaaDxub&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=F0Zonfi7gXeK7fQhOksZ9hYr%2BgTWFJW2sGvLxl0SG/jyHSPsbRIk2KIY7/QnzivB&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=8IQOs0k2KmFIw4iePUMRSkrdK3y4ebJTRmt/K88R/IwHe6CUL6gZ7J03d07Sg2Pa&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=4IkdjyIwQIfNe76u7nIApnogMxKC2lNkJDObdzX5R1PHZctbRPNBOw%2B8kgbmFshG&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=IdY%2BTXCqgVOv4HIl/qBPEDuqcNcE4nJVvFt9PIdVpJuA/PmeyKvPgD/eA1QvKbdH&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=IrBXI4Nox7ekoyKrvta0u3Cx8CDMxz7N/i2R0Izvj3asm1LtovvQsc20VMJlVKZu&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=axBUmx5%2BJERLTMKLP2ULV%2BgKTO%2B0Z7LSG3Sh/MacEEeG29lJpEciNtzp0Swss8bQ&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=oArMWej3bdyweh3yePHnzQRnP/z1CPXJaEDTBRCCK%2BHpbMynKRH466D8I0KzAF51&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=sTzRylTG5xRxepQ3SCn6NVnrmAExJnotIL4QeSlmEnzHsXH02cZThIZxnjxdx1h5&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=1RU3i963o/rZpjeN%2B9AMThvp41LTkwyde29fLmFqFTY5qnx7M1ZyLZEiNrWlvdpn&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=QD/KWvhU2JRlebzW4ERKeQ3jzMu5L0MfUutsSMZeZREBIvwuhix5CrYzHRpsjfyM&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=HiuuYSONoR%2BcxiHraAcU28Mj8CFPKHw/QQ8Ism0VDeDLVBQUJb59y8MiyZIzoAGK&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=hAfwoHlcHIAg%2B/uIQAL3eL1mAzmCzEomMNmfcb%2BQmYg7iQpCykUDAS8mRaOZHdbr&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=68cx79R0kP3Ay7wXdJng4XTjOU3AQgcxNabNreHxxbQ6Mt5athF/sCzozXNJw4r2&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=TLoBnWnwsTYd4UlIJYZtf7Xxg%2Bj1a3INmkvYL7yXW2sK4W48slv9thN5Ktb77EaZ&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=HRLoeqoZ1b/Yz%2B4eChf%2BuOUUtwsPC8ueTlqoa0Jo4uzBamG2WhG209tSOBdk6dEx&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=H7I8O8C8rbReyMlNd8Hwa4PsecnL2xavjiRbIHLPkLZh2pyKCfqTE6nlvE8pUDsi&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Nvmj6Tcy9AKv%2BfCwd8exxz2KJh8ZoQWVudkOfYzM9rtjlGw9kmHih14MBzkYBtHu&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=PeAQWeoNqkBl7d60oBqBLtdwbjAdbVS7pnsWr/XOWjCm0QOqeFW0BU0tDd2sKfka&


 
 
 

04/01/2015 18:16    |Town of Brunswick |P      5
jhenze              |MARCH 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 09
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
191611 49000  Town Clerk Miscellane        1,250       1,250       1,066.25         150.50                        183.75   85.3%*
191911 49000  Planning Miscellaneou          150         150         402.25           1.75                       -252.25  268.2%*
191941 49000  Natural Resources Mis            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
192121 49000  Fire Miscellaneous          800         800       1,224.52         200.00                       -424.52  153.1%*
192194 49151  Fire Vehicle Sales            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
192221 49000  Police Miscellaneous            0           0       3,051.03          93.29                     -3,051.03  100.0%*
192294 49153  Police Vehicle Sales        8,000       8,000            .00            .00                      8,000.00     .0%*
193131 49000  Public Works Miscella            0           0       1,794.87       1,664.73                     -1,794.87  100.0%*
193131 49155  PW Fuel Sales - Gasol            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
193131 49156  PW Fuel Sales - Diese            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
193194 49154  Public Works Vehicle            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
194141 49000  Human Services Misc            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
194141 49103  General Assistance Re            0           0       1,323.54            .00                     -1,323.54  100.0%*
194545 49000  School Miscellaneous      118,000     118,000      77,908.51      17,868.46                     40,091.49   66.0%*
195051 49000  Recreation Miscellane            0           0       1,000.33            .00                     -1,000.33  100.0%*
199980 48100  General Fund Transfer      710,000     710,000     511,224.73            .00                    198,775.27   72.0%*

 
TOTAL Other                         1,064,200   1,064,200     758,195.74      21,020.91                    306,004.26   71.2%

 
TOTAL REVENUES    1,064,200   1,064,200     758,195.74      21,020.91                    306,004.26

 
GRAND TOTAL   58,099,543  58,299,543  50,272,928.69   1,857,578.68                  8,026,614.31   86.2%

 
                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Julie Henze **                                           

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=mO0KpcDY5rjpJSdEK6S5ViprR%2BixwKEEFTU4VkJLjPe2fnLpOAnXLDYO4tAhsOgw&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=wNhe0SZOZ5cL7mZcRHZheEg0f69smBlOfT6423MnoMk2QS%2BeCGNyafqCiAD6vk/m&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=O21/kGx987wgPrOWFNpfj6Nev9GxjF%2B97t2lLDiizgNo%2Bsb7vv9RqzMYBXmGAEZ%2B&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=AUZJXFbbQWHx8156b1pTDTOEne%2BqIdZHHJzkmE9H3Ld%2BHHc1AabirHyPxzOiau5P&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=vY5LqTJ0tFMMV7SW/ePDLlSXFRijS1/IGDGrjBPTAMPvxfItWrP5jvcnLu2SrVze&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=TDyL%2BB0aamuhyTjedsTI5OjxsXLAWn9PguA%2BMRThSnaF9STWvdMZ4g3EeVOB8tvv&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=iTFQM3u%2B5eSfY/vFlbkoF%2B8vtnf0O2q0zPmlDfMdh6%2BMncSJtZUmS854nC58nAVK&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=gl12Bt05dkc1bJGl2xlvOzrjDAqNYq5hbsi4OIQwLMYZT5O5E7ZBHpKbhjuRsqB0&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=0asB8wwiy1tEUlEdUTU%2B8ILwwNEhILz2aaUndR4Du07lEURWlGlaAKcpEFMV0b9u&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ZSjQcIsL2Eg6AQbBrwpSPz0o%2BOUavx2czAs4HRXeuZ2MKfVIggI6SPw1qkLjAJfT&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=PcNjojwlCwNJVPJosCUMbk4tEdaCfV1JgjgJk9LrtyKbTXU%2BUHAyxt/tdzgXFKGC&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=97qjPmLiOTYZMkiImo1Gsj8m3MQUemGBGL%2BimtoJ2mjtghAe9VptTiFCyS9NPC/1&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=jyEwIDVfqFnb1juavQZ95K4bMDaUicE/AXECZQvc9R8IuKxzA4VIoYPYBvNz9Dq9&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=w6VkMEY9OjFweijKiWg61K5ZG/fi6EHAB5dcyUz7sJxDjU9DhpF2hc9JvJPJPd0t&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=NanWQnn34Uz1ytvoxjV94dGYy1j2WuUFn3kxZhvTY9j/uSxZaRa/mjzToyQcyoBX&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=XilZfv0TYoptRy4y6OpnHMZsLpH2Pv/y4x0nI0vaZiN/2HF1KA4bvlG9p0sgxsHm&


 
 
 

04/01/2015 18:14    |Town of Brunswick |P      1
jhenze              |MARCH 2015 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 09
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
                                            APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

00 Fill                               
_________________________________________

 
19000 General Fund Transfers Out    1,147,860   1,147,860   1,147,860.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
TOTAL Fill                          1,147,860   1,147,860   1,147,860.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
 

10 General Government                 
_________________________________________

 
11000 Administration      489,397     489,397     399,478.08      44,529.15          80.00      89,838.92   81.6%
11100 Finance Department      715,425     715,425     473,203.67      50,067.82       1,017.32     241,204.01   66.3%
11150 Technology Services Dept      327,848     327,848     238,401.42      32,275.60      27,613.05      61,833.53   81.1%
11200 Municipal Officers       85,615      85,615      59,609.57       1,603.01       3,571.00      22,434.43   73.8%
11210 Munic Bldg - 85 Union      210,720     210,720     134,075.91      19,253.44       4,320.05      72,324.04   65.7%
11220 Munic Bldg - 28 Federal            0           0          70.00          70.00            .00         -70.00  100.0%
11230 Risk Management      473,750     473,750     360,517.87        -106.13            .00     113,232.13   76.1%
11240 Employee benefits            0           0    -159,428.05     -10,951.98            .00     159,428.05  100.0%
11250 Cable TV       47,790      47,790      35,343.37       3,622.72            .00      12,446.63   74.0%
11300 Assessing      293,660     293,660     191,788.76      20,606.26       2,037.00      99,834.24   66.0%
11600 Town Clerk & Elections      362,077     365,477     250,884.17      25,395.80         400.00     114,192.83   68.8%
11900 Planning Department      490,779     510,504     350,407.20      36,179.37       6,746.78     153,350.03   70.0%
11950 Economic Development Dept      109,087     109,087      70,383.43       7,671.51            .00      38,703.57   64.5%

 
TOTAL General Government            3,606,148   3,629,273   2,404,735.40     230,216.57      45,785.20   1,178,752.41   67.5%

 
 

20 Public Safety                      
_________________________________________

 
12100 Fire Department    3,104,392   3,113,742   2,221,327.37     235,342.05      15,809.65     876,604.98   71.8%
12150 Central Fire Station       42,089      45,739      27,980.57       4,097.78       2,722.20      15,036.47   67.1%
12160 Emerson Fire Station       41,825      41,825      33,247.51       6,386.09       2,957.78       5,619.71   86.6%
12200 Police Department    3,762,478   3,762,478   2,619,179.18     294,630.98       5,239.88   1,138,058.94   69.8%
12210 Police Special Detail            0           0      34,523.17         607.74            .00     -34,523.17  100.0%
12220 Emergency Services Dispatch      777,412     777,412     534,979.76      55,911.31            .00     242,432.24   68.8%
12250 Police Station Building       98,020      98,020      69,117.97      11,195.53         920.00      27,982.03   71.5%
12310 Streetlights      208,000     208,000     151,733.36      18,087.49            .00      56,266.64   72.9%
12320 Traffic Signals       31,600      31,600      14,954.70       2,616.07       6,000.00      10,645.30   66.3%
12330 Hydrants      438,790     438,790     225,698.85            .00            .00     213,091.15   51.4%
12340 Civil Emergency Preparedness        2,000       2,000       1,662.65            .00            .00         337.35   83.1%

 
TOTAL Public Safety                 8,506,606   8,519,606   5,934,405.09     628,875.04      33,649.51   2,551,551.64   70.1%

 
 
 
 



 
 
 

04/01/2015 18:14    |Town of Brunswick |P      2
jhenze              |MARCH 2015 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 09
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
30       Public Works                       APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

30 Public Works                       
_________________________________________

 
13100 Public Works Administration      429,111     429,111     301,084.57      32,545.27            .00     128,026.43   70.2%
13110 PW General Maintenance    1,706,214   1,906,214   1,560,245.69     242,307.86      32,316.38     313,651.93   83.5%
13130 Refuse Collection      581,847     581,847     410,656.44      51,885.63     118,948.87      52,241.69   91.0%
13140 Recycling      297,729     297,729     200,511.77      23,834.93      96,249.67         967.56   99.7%
13150 PW Central Garage      741,300     751,500     659,622.82     122,845.10      44,697.36      47,179.82   93.7%

 
TOTAL Public Works                  3,756,201   3,966,401   3,132,121.29     473,418.79     292,212.28     542,067.43   86.3%

 
 

40 Human Services                     
_________________________________________

 
14100 General Assistance      163,607     163,607     124,719.92      13,258.10       3,370.02      35,517.06   78.3%
14120 Health & Social Services        2,766       2,766       1,645.98            .00            .00       1,120.02   59.5%

 
TOTAL Human Services                  166,373     166,373     126,365.90      13,258.10       3,370.02      36,637.08   78.0%

 
 

45 Education                          
_________________________________________

 
14500 School Department   35,763,587  35,763,587  22,242,703.00   2,482,391.46            .00  13,520,884.00   62.2%

 
TOTAL Education                    35,763,587  35,763,587  22,242,703.00   2,482,391.46            .00  13,520,884.00   62.2%

 
 

50 Recreation and Culture             
_________________________________________

 
15000 Recreation Administration      456,225     466,225     327,112.50      38,500.25       1,331.23     137,781.27   70.4%
15050 Rec Buildings and Grounds      678,434     678,434     453,182.78      45,643.61       9,076.90     216,174.32   68.1%
15250 Rec Building 211      160,327     160,327     103,494.43      13,269.77      14,018.08      42,814.49   73.3%
15300 Teen Center       15,000      15,000      15,000.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%
15310 People Plus      115,000     115,000     110,000.00            .00            .00       5,000.00   95.7%
15400 Curtis Memorial Library    1,285,000   1,285,000     956,225.21     105,833.33            .00     328,774.79   74.4%

 
TOTAL Recreation and Culture        2,709,986   2,719,986   1,965,014.92     203,246.96      24,426.21     730,544.87   73.1%

 
 

60 Intergovernmental                  
_________________________________________

 
 
 
 



 
 
 

04/01/2015 18:14    |Town of Brunswick |P      3
jhenze              |MARCH 2015 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 09
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
60       Intergovernmental                  APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
16000 County tax    1,333,350   1,333,350   1,333,350.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
TOTAL Intergovernmental             1,333,350   1,333,350   1,333,350.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
 

70 Unclassified                       
_________________________________________

 
17000 Promotion and Development      164,917     164,917     153,568.95          15.00            .00      11,348.05   93.1%
17010 Additional School Assistance       10,000      10,000      10,000.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%
17020 Cemetery Care        3,000       3,000       1,250.00            .00            .00       1,750.00   41.7%
17030 Wage Adjustment Account        9,000       9,000      30,000.00            .00            .00     -21,000.00  333.3%
17052 School Master Plan            0      14,527            .00            .00      14,526.97            .00  100.0%

 
TOTAL Unclassified                    186,917     201,444     194,818.95          15.00      14,526.97      -7,901.95  103.9%

 
 

80 Debt Service                       
_________________________________________

 
18020 2006 CIP G/O Bonds      252,000     252,000     228,000.00            .00            .00      24,000.00   90.5%
18030 2011 GO CIP Bonds      264,890     264,890     322,620.00            .00            .00     -57,730.00  121.8%
18040 Police Station Bond      405,625     405,625     341,687.51            .00            .00      63,937.49   84.2%
18050 2010 Elementary School Bond            0           0    -237,239.14            .00            .00     237,239.14  100.0%

 
TOTAL Debt Service                    922,515     922,515     655,068.37            .00            .00     267,446.63   71.0%

 
 

GRAND TOTAL   58,099,543  58,370,395  39,136,442.92   4,031,421.92     413,970.19  18,819,982.11   67.8%
 

                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Julie Henze **                                           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - E 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT – F 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Government Finance Officers Association 
203 N. LaSalle Street - Suite 2700 
Chicago, IL 60601 

Phone (3 12) 977-9700 Fax (3 12) 977-4806 

April 7, 2015 

John S. Eldridge, III 
Town Manager 
Town of Brunswick 
85 Union Street 
Brunswick 

Dear Mr. Eldridge: 

ME 04011 

We are pleased to notify you that your comprehensive annual financial repo11 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 
qualifies for a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting. The Certificate of Achievement is the 
highest form of recognition in governmental accounting and financial reporting, and its attainment represents a significant 
accomplishment by a government and its management 

An award for the Certificate of Achievement has been shipped to: 

Julia A.C. Henze 
Finance Director 

We hope that you will arrange for a formal presentation of the Certificate and Award of Financial Repo11ing Achievement, 
and that appropriate publicity will be given to this notable achievement. A sample news release is enclosed to assist with 
this effort. Jn addition, details of recent recipients of the Certificate of Achievement and other information about 
Certificate Program results are available in the "Awards Program" area of our website, www.gfoa.org. 

We hope that your example will encourage other government officials in their effo11s to achieve and maintain an 
appropriate standard of excellence in financial repo11ing. 

Sincerely, 
Government Finance Officers Association 

Stephen J. Gauthier, Director 

Technical Services Center 

SJG/ds 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - G 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



Maine Municipal Association
NOTICE

Seeking Nominations for MMA Executive Committee
Nominations 
Nominations are being accepted for three seats on the MMA Executive Committee.The Vice President position is also open to municipal 
officials who have served at least 12 consecutive months on the MMA Executive Committee during the past five years. The Nominating 
Committee will interviewVice President candidates and selected candidates for the Executive Committee positions during their meeting 
in May.

What Is Involved? 
The Executive Committee is the Maine Municipal Association’s corporate board, consisting of twelve elected and appointed municipal 
officials representing the interests of member municipalities throughout the state. The Committee has overall governance and fiduciary 
responsibility for the Association, its annual operating budget, and the development of policy and priority initiatives.  The Executive
Committee meets 10-12 times per year and has a required attendance policy in place.The Association reimburses municipal officials 
or their municipality for travel related expenses incurred for attending meetings or authorized activities to represent the Association's
 interests.

Who Should Apply? 
• Town and/or city managers or chief appointed administrative officials in an active member municipality; or
• “Municipal officers” (mayor and aldermen or councilors of a city, the selectmen or councilors of a town, and the assessors of a plantation)

What are the Qualifications? 
• The ability to serve a three year-term;
• Basic knowledge and/or interest in the corporate operations of the Maine Municipal Association;
• Although not necessary, it would be helpful to have prior experience on other governing boards/committees and/or involvement in

the Maine Municipal Association.

Timetable 

March 19, 2015 Appointment of MMA Nominating Committee
(MMA Executive Committee appoints 2 MMA Past Presidents; 2 Elected Municipal Officials, and 
1 President of Affiliate Group or Town/City Manager or Chief Appointed Administrtive Official)

March 27, 2015 Ist Meeting of Nominating Committee — Review of Nominating Committee Process

April 2015 Notice in monthly magazine, MMA Townsman, and electronic newsletter, MMA This Month

April 1, 2015 Ist Electronic Mailing to Key Municipal Officials — Seeking Interested Candidates

May 4, 2015 Deadline for Receipt of Statement of Interests & Support Letters of Recommendation
The Nominating Committee will then hold its 2nd Meeting by Conference Call to review all Statements of 
Interest and select candidates to be interviewed.

Monday, May 11, 2015 3rd Meeting of Nominating Committee
Interviews with Selected Candidates and put forth Proposed Slate of Nominees

May 18, 2015 2nd Mailing to Key Municipal Officials — Proposed Slate of Nominees

July 6, 2015 — 4:30 p.m. Deadline for Receipt of Nominees by Petition

July 16,2015 3rd Mailing to Key Municipal Officials — MMA Voting Ballots

August 14, 2015 — 12:00 noon Deadline for Receipt of MMA Voting Ballots

August 14, 2015 MMA Election Day — Counting of Voting Ballots

For Further Information:
Please visit the MMA Website at www.memun.org for additional information on the MMA Nominating Committee process, 
timetable, over view of Executive Committee responsibilities and access to the Statement of Interest Forms for the MMA 
Executive Committee and Vice President positions. Please contact Theresa Chavarie at 1-800-452-8786 ext. 2211 or by e-mail at 
tchavarie@memun.org if you have any questions. (Please see Statement of Interest Form for the MMA Executive Committee on back side 
of this Notice.)



Maine Municipal Association 
STATEMENT OF INTEREST FORM 

SERVICE ON THE MMA EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
Deadline for Receipt — 12:00 p.m. on Monday, May 4, 2015 

Please answer each question completely & submit letter(s) of recommendation. 
Attach additional sheets if necessary. 

Name of Candidate:  _______________________________________________________________________________________________________  

Municipal Position: ___________________________________ Years in Position: _______________________________________________________  

Municipality: ________________________________________ County: ______________________________________________________________  

Preferred Mailing Address:  __________________________________________________________________________________________________  

Work or Office Phone ________________________________ Home Phone: __________________________________________________________  
Mobile/Cell Phone ___________________________________ E-Mail:  _______________________________________________________________  

Professional and Municipal Experience — Please include work experience, appointments to municipal/agency/organizational boards, and 
volunteerism (provide position title and year(s) of service): 

 _________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 _________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 _________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 _________________________________________________________________________________________________  
Previous Involvement With the Maine Municipal Association — Please provide info on your past involvement on MMA Legislative Policy Committee, 
Governance Boards, Ad Hoc Committees, Municipal Leadership Program, Convention Planning, etc., (provide dates of service, if available): 
 _________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 _________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 _________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 _________________________________________________________________________________________________  

Other Information — Occupation, education, other activities of interest, awards, etc. 
 _________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 _________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 _________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 _________________________________________________________________________________________________  

What Attributes Do You Believe You (or Your Candidate) Will Bring To The Maine Municipal Association? 

 _________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 _________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 _________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 _________________________________________________________________________________________________  

Please provide a Municipal Reference that we may contact: 

 
__________________________________ __________________________________      ________________________________  
Name Municipal Position Telephone # 

For an understanding of the attendance policy please see the MMA Executive Committee job description which is located on the MMA 

website. Based on this, do you believe that the time commitment meets your availability? 

—  Yes      No 

If you are making this recommendation on behalf of someone other than yourself, please complete the following information so that we may contact 
you if more information is needed. 

Name: ______________________________________ Daytime Tel #: __________________________ Email: _________________________________  

Municipal Position: ________________________________________________  Municipality: _______________________________________________  
Address: _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

MMA Nominating Committee c/o Executive Office FAX: (207) 626-3358 
Maine Municipal Association, 60 Community Drive, Augusta, Maine 04330 E-mail: tchavarie@memun.org 

http://memun.org/


Maine Municipal Association 
 

Executive Committee 
Responsibilities and Protocols 

 
 
The Maine Municipal Association (MMA) is a non-profit organization providing an array of professional 
services and insurance related programs to its members.  The Executive Committee (Committee) is 
the Association’s corporate board of directors, and has overall governance and fiduciary responsibility 
for MMA, including its annual operating budget and custody of its assets. 
 
About The Executive Committee 
 
• The Committee is created by the By-laws of the Maine Municipal Association to serve as the 

corporate governing body; 
• Elections of officers and members of the Committee are held on an annual basis and voted upon 

by the full Municipal membership; 
• The Committee is composed of twelve elected or appointed municipal officials including a 

President, Vice President, Immediate Past President and nine Executive Committee members; 
and 

• Officers serve one-year terms and members are elected to three-year staggered terms, unless 
filling a vacant seat on the Committee. 

 
Qualifications 
 
• Must be a town or city manager or chief appointed administrative official of an active member 

municipality; or 
• A “municipal officer” as defined by state law, of an active member municipality.  This means the 

mayor and aldermen or councilors of a city, the selectmen or councilors of a town, and the 
assessors of a plantation; and 

• The ability to serve a three year-term; and 
• Basic knowledge and/or interest in the corporate operations of the MMA; and 
• Although not necessary, prior experience on other governing boards and/or involvement in the 

MMA. 
 
Time Commitment 
 
Service on the MMA Executive Committee requires a substantial time commitment.  There is an 
attendance policy in the MMA By-laws that states: 
 

“If any member or member-elect of the Executive Committee is absent from more 
than three meetings of the Executive Committee … within a calendar year, the 
position of that member shall be deemed to be vacant, unless declared otherwise 
by a majority vote of the full membership of the Executive Committee, excepting 
that member, and the vacancy filled in accordance with this section.”   

 
Committee members are expected to participate in the following: 
 

• Regular monthly meetings, which are typically held in Augusta on Thursdays, beginning at 
9:00 a.m. 

Amended and Approved by the MMA Executive Committee, January 28, 2010                                                          Page 1 
 



• A 2-day fall strategic planning meeting that is most often held in the municipality of the current 
MMA President;  

• The MMA Annual Convention held in the fall; and 
• Any additional subcommittee and/or ad hoc committee meetings as identified by management 

staff and approved by the Committee.  Service on subcommittees (such as the MMA Strategic 
& Finance Committee) may entail additional meetings during a calendar year.   

 
Responsibilities 
 
The major responsibilities of the MMA Executive Committee include: 
 

• Establishing the mission and setting the direction for MMA; 
• Planning for the future of MMA, including setting short and long-term goals; 
• Representing MMA to external parties; 
• Serving as an ambassador to MMA’s members and representing the interests of all 

municipalities; 
• Hiring the MMA Executive Director; 
• Evaluating the performance of the MMA Executive Director; 
• Providing overall governance of MMA; 
• Providing financial oversight of MMA, including adoption of the budget, and retaining the 

auditor; 
• Developing and amending MMA policies; 
• Establishing and maintaining a system for building consensus among the members; 
• Attending the MMA Annual Convention; 
• Serving as Board of Trustees of the MMA Workers’ Compensation Fund; 
• Serving as Trustees of the MMA Unemployment Compensation Fund; and 
• Serving as the nucleus of the governing Board of Directors for the MMA Property & Casualty 

Pool Program. 
 
Protocols 
 
To enable the MMA Executive Committee to conduct its business professionally and efficiently, the 
Committee adheres to the MMA Code of Ethics & Conduct Policy as adopted and to the following 
protocols: 
 

1. Written Materials – Whenever possible, the Committee requests that written materials be 
provided in advance and be made a part of the agenda and packet materials on issues to 
come before the Committee for consideration. 
 

2. Requests From Outside Organizations – Organizations or individuals seeking consideration by 
the MMA Executive Committee should contact the MMA Executive Director.  If the Executive 
Director, in consultation with the MMA President, determines that the request should 
appropriately come before the Committee, the organization/individual will be asked to submit 
the request in writing, with appropriate support materials.  As a general practice, the 
Committee does not receive in-person presentations from outside organizations/individuals. 

 
 
For more information on the commitment, responsibilities and protocols for the MMA Executive 
Committee, please contact Theresa Chavarie, MMA Manager of Member Relations & Executive Office 
at 1-800-452-8786 or locally at 623-8428 ext. 2211 or by e-mail at tchavarie@memun.org. 

Amended and Approved by the MMA Executive Committee, January 28, 2010                                                          Page 2 
 

mailto:tchavarie@memun.org


MAINE MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION 
 

2015 NOMINATING COMMITTEE 
 

 
MMA Past Presidents: 
 
Chair:  Nicholas Mavodones, Jr. Councilor   
City of Portland       
389 Congress Street      
Portland, ME  04101-3503 
City Office: (207) 874-8941  
Email : nmm@portlandmaine.gov  
 
County:  Cumberland 
Population: 66,194 
MMA Involvement:  Executive Committee Member 
 
 
John E Madigan, Jr., Town Manager 
Town of Mexico & Town of Rumford 
PO Box 251 
Mexico, ME 04257-0251 
Town Office: (207)364-7971 
E-mail:  jmadigan@mexicomaine.net 
 
County: Oxford County  
Population: 2,681 and 5,841 
MMA Involvement:  LPC Member 
 
 
President of Affiliate Group or  
 Chief Appointed Official: 
 
William Giroux, City Manager 
City of Bath 
55 Front Street 
Bath, ME 04530-2588 
City Office: (207) 443-8330   
E-mail:  wgiroux@cityofbath.comm 
 
County: Sagadahoc 
Population: 8,541 
MMA Involvement:  LPC Member 

Elected Officials: 
 
Gary M. Fortier, Councilor 
City of Ellsworth 
One City Hall Plaza 
Ellsworth, ME  04605 
Town Office: (207) 667-2563 
E-mail:  gfortier@ellsworthmaine.gov 
 
County: Hancock County 
Population: 7,741 
MMA Involvement:  LPC Member 
 
 
Sarah Hall, Selectperson 
Town of Durham 
630 Hallowell Road 
Durham, ME 04222 
Town Office: (207)353-2561 
E-mail:  selectmanhall@durhamtown.comcastbiz.net 
 
County: Androscoggin 
Population: 3,848 
MMA Involvement:  LPC Member 
 
 
 
MMA Staff Assisting Nominating Committee: 
 
Theresa Chavarie, Manager 
MMA Member Relations & Executive Office 
Office:  1-800-452-8786 ext. 2211 
E-mail:  tchavarie@memun.org 
 
 
David Barrett, Director 
MMA Personnel Services & Labor Relations 
Office:  1-800-452-8786 ext. 2217 
E-mail:  dbarrett@memun.org 

 
 
 

mailto:nmm@portlandmaine.gov
mailto:jmadigan@mexicomaine.net
mailto:wgiroux@cityofbath.comm
mailto:gfortier@ellsworthmaine.gov
mailto:selectmanhall@durhamtown.comcastbiz.net
mailto:tchavarie@memun.org
mailto:dbarrett@memun.org


 
 

MANAGER’S REPORT - H 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Memo	Growstown	School	042015.docx	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 April	21,	2015	
	
RE:	 Growstown	School	
	 Repairs	Needed	
	 	
	
	
	
According	to	Town	records,	Growstown	School	was	built	in	1849	as	a	one‐room	schoolhouse,	and	
was	in	use	until	1950.		The	school	has	been	used	each	spring	to	house	an	educational	program,	
primarily	for	fourth	and	fifth	graders.		The	school	is	also	used	in	the	fall	to	accommodate	fund‐
raising	activities	in	support	of	the	school	and	its	programs.	
	
Over	the	years,	various	repairs	have	been	made	to	the	school.	In	2009,	a	portion	of	the	floor	
supports	were	repaired.		Beams	and	joists	were	replaced	and	added.		Work	was	done	from	the	
crawl	space	underneath	the	building.		Over	the	last	two	years,	a	large	portion	of	the	floor	has	
settled.		That	portion	of	the	floor	was	fenced	off	to	keep	people	from	using	it.		A	recent	inspection	of	
the	floor	indicates	that	a	number	of	joists	have	failed.		Because	of	the	floor’s	condition,	and	a	
concern	for	safety,	we	reluctantly	notified	the	schools	that	they	could	not	conduct	the	spring	
educational	events	that	had	been	planned.		
	
Attached	are	photos	depicting	the	damage	to	the	floor	system.		I	have	asked	a	structural	engineer	to	
review	the	floor	supports.		Our	hope	is	that	we	can	develop	a	plan	of	correction	that	will	be	effective	
and	long‐lasting,	at	a	reasonable	cost.		The	extent	of	the	repairs	and	costs	cannot	be	determined	
until	we	have	had	a	more	thorough	examination	of	the	structure.	
	
We	expect	the	structural	evaluation	will	be	completed	within	the	next	several	weeks.	Once	the	
evaluation	is	complete,	we	will	be	looking	to	make	the	repairs.		Depending	on	the	scope	of	work	and	
estimated	cost,	it	is	likely	that	we	will	request	a	funding	appropriation.		The	goal	would	be	to	have	
the	repairs	made	so	that	the	building	can	reopen	this	fall.	
	
We	will	keep	you	apprised	of	any	developments	as	we	learn	them.	















 
 

 
MANAGER REPORT - I 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 





 
 

 
ITEM 39 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 













 
 

 
ITEM 40 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 CHANGES TO PARKING ON THE WEST SIDE OF  

FEDERAL STREET TO ACCOMMODATE  

BIKE LANE BETWEEN  

GREEN STREET AND RAILROAD OVERPASS  

 

  Chapter 15 
 

TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES* 
__________  

* Cross References: Animals, Ch. 4; dogs, § 4-26 et seq.; fire prevention and protection, Ch. 7; housing, Ch. 8; vehicles for hire, 

§ 10-96 et seq.; solid waste, Ch. 13; streets, sidewalks and other public places, Ch. 14; zoning and subdivision of land, App. A; traffic 

impact analysis required in certain circumstances, App. A, § 409.3, L; subdivision regulations, App. A, § 501 et seq. 
__________  

 
 Art. I. In General, §§ 15-1--15-25 

 
 Art. II. Traffic-Control Devices, §§ 15-26--15-45 

 
 Art. III. Specific Street Regulations, §§ 15-46--15-70 

 
 Art. IV. Stopping, Standing, Parking, §§ 15-71--15-100 

 
 Art. V. Rules for Operation of Vehicles, §§ 15-101--15-120 

 
 Art. VI. Pedestrians, §§ 15-121--15-140 

 
 Art. VII. Bicycles and Skateboards, §§ 15-141--15-144 

 

. 

  ARTICLE IV. 
 

STOPPING, STANDING, PARKING* 
__________  

* Cross References: Streets, sidewalks and other public places, Ch. 14. 

__________  

 

Sec. 15-74. - No-parking areas. 

 

The following areas are designated as no-parking areas: … 

 

 

Federal Street, west side, commencing at Bath Road and extending northerly one thousand fifty (1,050) 

feet.  to Green Street.  

 

... 





 
Minutes of the Brunswick BBPAC/MPIC Joint 'Sharrow' Workshop  
February 9, 2015, Room 206, Town Hall 

Attendees: 
Jane Millett, Town Council and MPIC; Margo Knight, MPIC Chair; Kathy Wilson, Town 
Council, BPAC and MPIC; Peter Dostie, MPIC; Rich Cromwell, BBPAC Co-Chair; Will 
Willkoff, BBPAC Co-Chair; Jeremy Doxsee, BBPAC Staff support. 

Also of note: 
Councilor John Perreault and Council-Chair Sarah Brayman attended as audience members; and 
John Foster, PW Director, attended. 

The Meeting was called to order at 6:00 PM and Committee Members were introduced. 

Rich Cromwell outlined the proposal by giving a brief history of the research and past 
discussions of Shared Lane Markings (SLM), also known as Sharrows.  He outlined the 
development of the proposal being presented and mentioned those who have contributed to the 
discussion. 

He then outlined the proposal and explained that these recommendations prepared over a two 
year period have the endorsement of both, BBPAC and MPIC. 

Will Wilkoff then showed a slide show and explained commonly used bicycle infrastructure, 
shared lanes and the significance of Federal Street and the opportunity the community has to 
improve bicycle safety and the access to playing fields, Maine Street businesses and the bike 
path. 

Members of the public in attendance included Town Councilors, Federal Street residents and 
businesses, and Maine Street businesses. 

The public was very engaged, asking many questions and offering comments. 

Sarah Brayman, Council Chair, asked about the loss of parking on the west side of Federal 
Street. 
 
The situation with the 13-15 parking spaces that will be lost; the available parking on the east 
side of the road; Chief Rizzo's comments; and the narrow travel lanes that result from having 
parking on both sides of the street in the area from Green Street/Jordan Avenue south to the 
railroad bridge were discussed. 

A number of audience members were very supportive of the proposal and there was no dissent. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
Rich Cromwell, BBPAC Co-Chair 
Will Wilkoff, BBPAC Co-Chair 
Margo Knight, MPIC Chair 
 



Maine St

Federal St

Park Row

Bath Rd

Noble St

Elm St

Jordan Ave

Potter St

Mason St

School St

Market Ln

Bank St

Franklin St
Center St

Cleaveland St

Green St

Everett St

Dunlap St

Maple St

Bath Rd (WB)

Stetson St

Pleasant St

Bath Rd (EB)

Sills Dr

Fitch Place

Federal Parking and
Street Sharrow Analysis

g

g

g

g

g

g

g
g

g

g

g

g

g

g

36'

34.2'

35'

35'

34'

33.2'

35.6'
36'

35.5'

34'

32.8

37.4'

37'

43.6'

g

35.5'

g

34.6'

Disclaimer: Draft, for disussion purposes only

Ü

0 250 500125
Feet

Legend
All Day Parking
No Parking
2 hours
15 minutes



Maine St

Federal St

State Highway

Park Row

Cressey Rd

Bath Rd

Noble St

Elm St

Jordan Ave

Mason St

School St

Market Ln

Bank St

Route1 Ramp

Franklin St

Center St

Cleaveland St

Green St

Everett St

Dunlap St

Maple St

Bath Rd (WB)

Wa
ter

 St
Stetson St

Pleasant St

Potter St

Columbus Dr

Bath Rd (EB)

Townhall Place

Fitch Place

Cumberland St

Lincoln St

State Highway

Route1 Ramp Proposed Federal Street 
 Parking Realignment and 

  Bike Lanes / Shared Lanes 
0 1,000500

Feet

Bike Lane
On-Street Parking

©̈ Sharrow
Train Tracks

±

 The Town of Brunswick Bicycle and 
    Pedestrian Advisory Committee



Prepared by: John Foster, Town Engineer Print Date: Mar 25, 2015

Item Quantity Unit Unit Price
 Est. Total

Cost 

Shared Lane Markings:
Obtain "Sharrow" Stencil, 40" x 112" (see Figure 9C-9 below) 1.0 ea. 200.00$        200.00$            
Paint Sharrow Symbol (12 s.f. each) 192.0 s.f. 0.65$            124.80$            
Double Yellow Centerline (950 l.f.  Exist) 2150.0 l.f. 0.08$            172.00$            
"Bicycle May Use Full Lane" signs (R4-11, 30" x 30") 4.0 ea. 65.00$          260.00$            
Sign Posts, U-Channel, 10 ft w/42" base & bolts 4.0 ea. 26.91$          107.64$            
Sub-Total for Establishing SBL: 864.44$            

Dedicated Bike Lane (from School St to Bath Rd, South Bound):

Bicycle symbol on pavement 5.0 ea. 30.00$          150.00$            
Bike Lane sign (R3-17, 24" x 18") 2.0 ea. 55.00$          110.00$            
Supplemental  "End" sign (R3-17, 24" x 6") 1.0 ea. 61.00$          61.00$              
Sign Posts, U-Channel, 10 ft w/42" base & bolts 4.0 ea. 26.91$          107.64$            
No Parking signs from Green St to MCRR overpass 3.0 ea. 9.89$            29.67$              
Sign Posts, U-Channel, 10 ft w/42" base & bolts 1.0 ea. 26.91$          26.91$              
Sub-Total for Establishing Bike Lane: 485.22$            

Total Estimated Cost 1,350.00$         

Town of Brunswick
Estimate of Probable Cost

Establish Shared Lane Marking (SLM) & 
Dedicated Bike Lane on Federal Street

R4-11 Sign, 30" x 30" R3-17 Sign, 24" x 18"



 
 

 
ITEM 41 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
 

 
ITEM 42 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Memo	Pine	Street	Access	042015.docx	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 April	21,	2015	
	
RE:	 Pine	Street	Bicycle	and	Pedestrian	
	 Access	to	Brunswick	Landing	
	
	
	
On	March	27,	2013,	the	Town	of	Brunswick	(the	"Town"),	the	Midcoast	Regional	Redevelopment	
Authority	(“MRRA”),	and	Bowdoin	College	(“Bowdoin”	or	the	“College”)	executed	an	Access	
Agreement.		That	agreement	provides	the	Town,	MRRA,	and	the	College	(the	“Parties”)	with	certain	
rights	of	access	to	a	portion	of	Brunswick	Landing	with	respect	to	the	property	conveyed	or	to	be	
conveyed	by	the	United	States	Government	to	the	Parties.		In	executing	the	Access	Agreement,	the	
Parties	indicated	a	desire	for	the	Town	to	construct	a	bicycle	and	pedestrian	access	path	beginning	
at	the	terminus	of	Pine	Street	and	connecting	to	the	Perimeter	Road	on	Brunswick	Landing.		The	
path	would	traverse	land	owned	by	the	Town	and	the	College.		Connecting	to	the	Perimeter	Road	
would	provide	bicyclists	and	pedestrians	a	route	to	portions	of	Brunswick	Landing	without	having	
to	travel	on	Bath	Road.		Access	to	the	Perimeter	Road	would	also	allow	connections	to	other	trail	
systems	at	Brunswick	Landing.	
	
The	Brunswick	Bicycle	and	Pedestrian	Advisory	Committee	(“BBPAC”)	has	considered	the	proposed	
access	path	from	Pine	Street	and	has	endorsed	the	project.		At	its	April	15,	2015	meeting,	the	
Recreation	Commission	voted	to	support	construction	of	the	path	and	to	recommend	the	use	of	up	
to	$60,000	in	Recreation	Impact	Fees	to	finance	the	project.	
	
John	Foster,	Town	Engineer,	in	coordination	with	Bowdoin	College,	has	determined	the	alignment	
of	the	path.		Mr.	Foster	has	also	developed	a	project	budget.		Both	the	proposed	alignment	and	the	
budget	are	attached.	
	
Recreation	impact	fees	are	levied	by	ordinance	and	are	collected	from	developments	that	have	gone	
through	subdivision	or	site	review	process.		Unless,	at	the	time	of	plan	approval,	the	impact	fees	are	
dedicated	to	a	specific	project,	the	use	of	recreation	impact	fees	requires	that	they	be	appropriated	
to	a	specific	project.		A	resolution	appropriating	up	to	$60,000	for	the	Pine	Street	access	path	is	
attached.	
	
We	would	be	happy	to	answer	any	questions	you	have	regarding	this	project.	
	
	
	
attachements	



 

O:\Finance\Capital	Projects\Projects\Pine	Street	Access	to	Brunswick	Landing\Pine	Street	Access	Resolution	2015.docx	

TOWN	OF	BRUNSWICK,	MAINE	
TOWN	COUNCIL	

	
A	Resolution	Authorizing	an	Appropriation	from	Recreation	Impact	Fees	for	the	Purpose	of	
Funding	Costs	of	the	Development	and	Construction	of	a	Bike/Pedestrian	Path	Beginning	at	
the	Terminus	of	Pine	Street	and	Connecting	to	the	Perimeter	Road	at	Brunswick	Landing	

	
	
WHEREAS,	the	Town	of	Brunswick	(the	"Town"),	the	Midcoast	Regional	Redevelopment	Authority	
(“MRRA”),	and	Bowdoin	College	(“Bowdoin”	or	the	“College”)	executed	an	Access	Agreement	dated	
March	27,	2013	(the	“Access	Agreement”);	and	
	
WHEREAS,	the	Access	Agreement	provides	the	Town,	MRRA	and	the	College	(the	“Parties”)	with	
certain	rights	of	access	with	respect	to	the	property	conveyed	or	to	be	conveyed	by	the	United	
States	Government	to	the	Parties	(collectively	the	“Property”)	and	in	particular	with	respect	to	the	
portion	of	the	Property	which	is	located	westerly	of	the	line	of	the	most	westerly	of	the	main	
runways	of	the	former	Brunswick	Naval	Air	Station,	and	the	extension	of	such	line	northerly	to	Bath	
Road	and	southerly	to	the	southerly	boundary	of	the	Property	(such	portion	being	sometimes	
referred	to	as	the	“West	Base");	and	
	
WHEREAS,	the	Brunswick	Bicycle	and	Pedestrian	Advisory	Committee	(“BBPAC”)	has	
recommended	that	the	Town	develop	and	construct	a	Bicycle/Pedestrian	path	beginning	at	the	
terminus	of	Pine	Street	and	connecting	to	the	Perimeter	Road	at	Brunswick	Landing	(the	“Access	
Path”);	and	
	
WHEREAS,	the	Town,	MRRA,	and	the	College	are	in	agreement	that	the	Access	Path	should	be	
constructed	and	have	agreed	upon	its	location	and	alignment;	and	
	
WHEREAS,	the	Town	Engineer	has	estimated	that	the	development	and	construction	of	the	Access	
Path	would	cost	up	to	$60,000;	and	
	
WHEREAS,	pursuant	to	its	ordinances,	the	Town	has	collected	Recreation	Impact	Fees	through	its	
subdivision	and	site	development	review	process;	and	
	
WHEREAS,	the	Recreation	Commission,	the	Director	of	Parks	and	Recreation,	and	the	Town	
Manager	have	determined	that	the	use	of	Recreation	Impact	Fees	to	fund	the	development	and	
construction	of	the	Access	Path	is	an	appropriate	use	of	those	fees;	and	
	
WHEREAS,	the	Recreation	Commission,	at	its	April	15,	2015	meeting	voted	to	recommend	the	use	
of	up	to	$60,000	of	Recreation	Impact	Fees	for	the	purpose	of	developing	and	constructing	the	
Access	Path;	and		
	
WHEREAS;	the	Town	is	required	to	appropriate	Recreation	Impact	Fees	in	order	to	utilize	those	
funds;	and	
	
NOW	THEREFORE,	BE	IT	RESOLVED:	
	
Section	1.		Appropriation	and	Expenditure	Authorization.		The	Town	transfers	from	its	
Recreation	Impact	Fee	Fund	the	sum	of	$60,000	and	appropriates	and	authorizes	the	expenditure	
of	that	amount	for	the	development	and	construction	of	the	Access	Path	(the	“Project”).		The	Town	



 

O:\Finance\Capital	Projects\Projects\Pine	Street	Access	to	Brunswick	Landing\Pine	Street	Access	Resolution	2015.docx	

Manager	is	further	authorized	to	expend	additional	funds	to	cover	costs	related	to	the	Project	that	
the	Manager	determines	to	be	incidental	and	necessary	to	complete	the	Project.	
	
Section	2.		Authorization	to	Execute	Agreements	and	other	Documents.		The	Town	Manager	is	
authorized	to	negotiate,	execute,	and	deliver,	in	the	name	of	and	on	behalf	of	the	Town,	such	
contracts,	agreements,	and	other	documents	and	certificates	as	the	Town	Manager	may	determine	
to	be	necessary	or	appropriate	in	connection	with	the	Project.		The	aforementioned	items	shall	be	
in	such	form	and	contain	such	terms	and	conditions	as	may	be	approved	by	the	Town	Manager.		
Such	approval	shall	be	conclusively	evidenced	by	the	Town	Manager’s	execution	thereof,	provided	
however,	that	the	Town	Manager	may	delegate	the	authority	granted	hereunder	as	the	Town	
Manager	deems	appropriate.	
	
Section	3.		Project	Costs	Defined.		The	term	“cost”	or	“costs”	as	used	herein	and	applied	to	the	
Project,	or	any	portion	thereof,	includes:	
	

a. the	cost	of	planning,	developing,	permitting,	and	constructing	the	Project;	
b. any	other	costs	identified	in	the	development	and	construction	of	the	Project	deemed	to	be	

costs	under	generally	accepted	accounting	principles	(“GAAP”)	as	determined	by	the	Town’s	
Finance	Director.	
	

Section	4.		Other	Actions	Authorized.		Any	actions	taken	to	date	by	the	Town	Manager,	Parks	and	
Recreation	Director,	and	the	Town	Engineer	in	connection	with	the	Project	are	hereby	ratified,	
confirmed,	and	approved.	
	
	
	
Proposed	to	Town	Council	–	April	27,	2015	
Adopted	by	Town	Council	–		
	
	
	



P
ro

p
o

sed
 L

ayo
u

t P
lan

12345

R
E

V
ISIO

N
SR
E

M
A

R
K

S
M

M
/D

D
/YY

P
ro

p
o

sed
 B

icycle/P
ed

estrian
 A

ccess 
P

ath
 P

in
e S

treet to
 P

erim
eter R

o
ad

T
o

w
n

 o
f B

ru
n

sw
ick

_
 _

 /_
 _

 /_
 _

_
 _

 /_
 _

 /_
 _

...
_

 _
 /_

 _
 /_

 _
...

_
 _

 /_
 _

 /_
 _

_
 _

 /_
 _

 /_
 _

...

001

P
in

e S
treet

Abijah Street

P
ro

p
o

sed
 14 ft B

ike/P
ed

 P
ath

B
runsw

ick Public W
orks D

ept.
B

y: John Foster, Tow
n E

ngineer
D

ate: April 22, 2015

Existing Perim
eter Rd

~
 12

0'

~ 237'

E
xistin

g
 B

T
W

D
 M

eter B
u

ild
in

g
  

L
o

cate B
o

llard
s an

d
 P

ip
e 

G
ate at E

xistin
g

 F
en

ce L
in

e

P
ro

p
o

sed
 P

ed
estrian

/B
ike P

ath
 to

 b
e

14.0 ft w
id

e an
d

 p
aved

S
t. J

o
h

n
 th

e
 B

a
p

tist C
e

m
ete

ry

F
u

tu
re

 C
e

m
e

tery L
a

n
d

B
o

w
d

o
in

 C
o

lleg
e, L

o
t 1

P
ro

p
o

sed
 P

ip
e G

ate

P
ro

p
o

sed
 R

o
u

n
d

 2 R
ail 

W
o

o
d

 F
en

ce w
/ 5' G

ap
s

5'

P
ro

p
erty L

in
es P

er
S

itelin
es, P

A
 S

u
rvey



JAF, Public Works Department Print Date: April 22, 2015

Description Quantity Unit Unit Price
Estimated 
Total Cost

Materials
Erosion Control Mix 30.0 c.y. $16.00 $480
4" Gravel, FOB Pit, 12" depth x 360 ft x 16 ft 340.5 c.y. $12.00 $4,086
Crushed Grade A Gravel, FOB Pit, 3" depth x 360 ft x 16 ft 94.6 c.y. $15.00 $1,419
Reclaim, FOB Pit for edging path for first 120 ft 78.2 tons $13.00 $1,017
Topsoil 31.3 c.y. $16.50 $516
Conservation Mix Seed 50.0 lbs $1.50 $75
Mulch Hay for erosion control 60.0 bales $3.00 $180
Sub-Total (Materials) $7,773

Contracted Services
Construct Opening in 6 ft chain link fence 2.0  ea. $600.00 $1,200
Post & Rail Fence to separate path at Pine St/Cemetery 140.0 l.f. $25.00 $3,500
Provide 6" dia. Pipe bollards (Topsham Pre-Cast) 3.0 $400.00 $1,200
Provide 6.6" Removable Bollard (Trafficgaurd Top Lock -TL1006R 1.0 $1,000.00 $1,000
Site Sign to Inform/Direct Path Users 1.0 ea. $800.00 $800
Fine Grade & Prepare Gravel Base for Paving 8.0 hrs $175.00 $1,400
Furnish and install 20 foot wide pipe gate 1.0 ea. $2,500.00 $2,500
Furnish & Install HMA Pavement, 14 ft wide, 2.5" deep, 12.5 mm 90 tons $140.00 $12,600
Furnish & Install Pavement Markings (2 lane lines, bollard warning 580.0 s.f. $1.50 $870
Sub-Total (Contracted Services) $25,070

Sum Materials & Contracted Services $32,800
Contingency 8% $2,624

Public Works Labor & Equipment Estimate
Dozer w/Oper. to regrade existing area & spread gravel 40.0 hrs $150.00 $6,000
Wheel Loader w/operator 40.0 hrs $125.00 $5,000
Tandem Axle Dump Trucks w/operators for Material Handling 160.0 hrs $65.00 $10,400
Laborer 120.0 hrs $25.00 $3,000
Total $24,400

Total Project Direct Cost $60,000

Estimate of Probable Cost
Construct Paved Pedestrian/Bicycle Path 

from Pine St to Perimeter Road
(to provide access to Brunswick Landing internal road system)

Town of Brunswick

Project Description: Construct paved pedestrian and bicycle path from Pine Street/Abijah Street to existing 
paved perimeter road on Brunswick Landing site.  Secure path at existing fence line with bollards to prohibit motor 
vehicle access.  One bollard will be removable for authorized access for maintenance needs.  Path will be 14 feet 
wide and approximately 360 feet in length.  



ACCESS AGREEMENT 

This Access Agreement is dated this ~'?'- day of Mwct\ , 2013 by and 
among the Town of Brunswick, Maine, having a mailing address of28 Federal Street, 
Brunswick, Maine 04011 (the "Town"), Bowdoin College, a Maine non-profit corporation, 
having an address of 5600 College Station, Brunswick, Maine 04011 ("Bowdoin"), and the 
Midcoast Regional Redevelopment Authority, an instrumentality of the State of Maine organized 
under Title 5, Maine Revised Statutes Section 13083-G, et seq., having a mailing address of 4 
Admiral Fitch A venue, Brunswick, Maine 04011 ("MRRA"). The Town, Bowdoin and MRRA 
are each sometimes hereinafter referred to as an "Owner" or collectively as the "Owners". 

WHEREAS, each of the Owners has acquired, or is expected to acquire, pm1ions of the 
former Brunswick Naval Air Station property from the United States of America (the 
"Government") pursuant to the deeds listed on Exhibit A attached hereto and expects to acquire 
other pmtions of such property as generally described on Exhibit A pursuant to future deeds 
from the Government following completion of certain environmental investigation and 
remediation work and issuance of the applicable Finding of Suitability to Transfer (FOST); and 

WHEREAS, the Owners desire to enter into this Agreement to set fmth ce1tain rights of 
access with respect to the property conveyed or to be conveyed by the Government to the 
Owners (collectively, the "Prope1ty") and in paiticular with respect to the pmtion of the Property 
which is located westerly of the line of the most westerly of the main runways of the former 
Brunswick Naval Air Station and the extension of such line northerly to Bath Road and southerly 
to the southerly boundary of the Prope1ty (such pmtion being sometimes herein referred to as the 
"West Base"); 

WHEREAS, after the applicable FOST and conveyance of additional land to the Owners 
as described on Exhibit A, the Government will retain ownership of the parcel known as the U.S. 
Coast Guai·d DGPS Site described in a Transfer and Acceptance of Military Real Prope1ty (DD 
Form 1354) having an effective date of September 28, 2009 between the United States Navy and 
the Depaitment of Homeland Security United States Coast Guard (hereinafter, the "Coast Guard 
Site") and the parcel known as the U. S. Almy Site described in a Transfer and Acceptance of 
Military Real Property (DD Form 1354) having an effective date of September 22, 2009 between 
the Depaitment of the Navy and the Depai1ment of the Army, USP&FO for Maine Guard 
(hereinafter, the "Army Site"); 

WHEREAS, certain water lines, electrical lines and communications lines and related 
conduits, manholes and other facilities that were conveyed by the Government to MRRA by Bill 
of Sale dated September 30, 2011 are located on the Prope1ty owned or to be owned by the Town 
or Bowdoin approximately as shown on Exhibit B attached hereto (the "MRRA Utilities"); 

WHEREAS, there are ce11ain existing roads located on the Prope1ty that all or some of 
the Owners desire to use subject to the terms hereof (the "Roads") consisting of the following 
roads located approximately as shown on Exhibit C: (i) the perimeter road beginning at the main 
entrance to the Prope1ty from Bath Road, extending westerly across MRRA's Prope11y nmth of 
the runways and then in a generally southerly direction across Prope1ty owned ot to be owned by 



each of the Owners to its intersection with Merriconeag Road described below, and then easterly 
across MRRA's Prope1iy south of the runways to an entrance to the Property leading to Gurnet 
Road (the "Perimeter Road"); (ii) the road providing an east-west route across the Prope11y that 
is known sometimes as Merriconeag Road and sometimes as the Golf Course Road which starts 
at the intersection of Middle Bay Road and Route 123, Harpswell Road and then extends easterly 
across the southerly p01iion of Town Parcel D and then over land of MRRA through the so
called "Dyer's Gate and then along the northerly boundary of the Army Site connecting to 
Coombs Road which intersects with Route 24, Gurnet Road (the "Merriconeag Road") and (iii) 
the road located near the westerly edge of Bowdoin Parcel #2 (EDU-BC-2) conveyed to 
Bowdoin (the "West Road"). 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Owners agree as follows: 

1. Shared Use of Perimeter Road. The Town, Bowdoin and MRRA shall each have 
the right to use the Perimeter Road for access purposes. Each Owner is familiar with the current 
condition of the Perimeter Road and agrees that its use of the Perimeter Road is in its AS IS 
condition and with all faults and that the Owner of each po1iion thereof shall not be liable to the 
users thereof for any claims arising out of the use of the Perimeter Road or its condition. Each 
Owner having the right to use the Perimeter Road shall be entitled to plow and/or maintain the 
Perimeter Road or portions thereof, but no Owner has any obligation to plow or maintain any 
p01iion of the Perimeter Road for the benefit of any other Owner. The Owners acknowledge that 
the Government has reserved ce1iain easement rights with respect to the land still owned by the 
Govermnent, including, without limitation the Coast Guard Site, and nothing herein shall be 
construed as granting any Owner the right to interfere with or limit such easement rights held by 
the Government. MRRA shall not have the right to grant or transfer the right to use the 
Perimeter Road to the owner of the St. John's Cemetery or to any of its successors or assigns 
who are owners or tenants of the p01iion of the Prope1iy located outside of the West Base. 

2. Shared Use ofMeniconeag Road. The Town, Bowdoin and MRRA shall each 
have the right to use the Merriconeag Road for access purposes. Each Owner having the right to 
use the Merriconeag Road shall be entitled to plow and/or maintain the Merriconeag Road or 
p01iions thereof, but no Owner has any obligation to plow or maintain any p01iion of the 
Meniconeag Road for the benefit of any other Owner. Each Owner is familiar with the cmTent 
condition of the Merriconeag Road and agrees that its use of the Merriconeag Road is in its AS 
IS condition and with all faults and that the Owner of each portion thereof shall not be liable to 
the users thereof for any claims arising out of the use of the Merriconeag Road or its condition. 
MRRA agrees to be responsible for the plowing and maintenance of the po1iion of the 
Merriconeag Road located on its land. The Owners aclmowledge that the occupants of the Almy 
Site shall have the right to use the Merriconeag Road. MRRA shall have the right to grant or 
transfer the right to use the Merriconeag Road to any of its successors or assigns who are owners 
or tenants of any p01iion of the Prope1iy, including, without limitation, p01iions of the Property 
located outside of the West Base. 

3. Shared Use of West Road. Use of the West Road shall be shared by the Town, 
Bowdoin and MRRA. Each Owner having the right to use the West Road shall be entitled to 
plow and/or maintain the West Road or po1iions thereof, but no Owner has any obligation to 
plow or maintain any portion of the West Road for the benefit of any other Owner. The Town 
and the MRRA are familiar with the current condition of the West Road and agree that their use 

2 



of the West Road is in its AS IS condition and with all faults and that Bowdoin shall not be liable 
to the users of the West Road for any claims arising out of the use of the West Road or its 
condition. The Town and MRRA understand that Bowdoin may at any time decide to co-locate 
a trail system along or abandon the West Road or limit its use to pedestrians and non-motorized 
traffic. 

4. Planned Relocation of Perimeter Road near Bowdoin Parcel #1. The Owner's 
acknowledge that the planned development of the Bowdoin Property designated as Parcel # 1 will 
require the relocation of a portion of the Perimeter Road as it crosses over said Parcel # 1. The 
plans for such relocation will be submitted to MRRA for its approval, which approval shall not 
be unreasonably withheld. If the Reciprocal Agreement (defined below) is then applicable to 
Parcel # 1, MRRA shall use diligent efforts to obtain approval of such relocation pursuant to 
Section 1.6 of the Reciprocal Agreement. Bowdoin shall unde11ake and complete this relocation 
at no cost to the MRRA or the Town. To the extent that the relocated road is located on MRRA 
prope11y, MRRA will assist Bowdoin in obtaining any pe1mits or approvals required for the 
relocation. Upon completion of this relocation, all references herein to the Perimeter Road shall 
be deemed to include such relocated road and shall no longer include the portion of road that is 
so relocated. The owners understand that MRRA and Bowdoin may restrict vehicle access to 
this relocated section of the Perimeter Road on MRRA land or may co-locate a trail system along 
this section of the Perimeter Road. 

5. MRRA Access Road. Recognizing that the approved Reuse Master Plan 
identifies an additional access road from Route 123, Harpswell Road to the MRRA parcel 
located Easterly of Bowdoin Parcel #3 (the "West Base Development Parcel"), the Town and 
Bowdoin agree that MRRA may locate an access road between Harpswell Road at the Quebec 
Gate and the northwest boundary of the West Base Development Parcel on property of Bowdoin 
at a location mutually agreed upon by the Owners. MRRA may also decide to continue such 
access road in a southerly direction across MRRA's land and then the easterly portion of the 
Town's Parcel D to intersect with the Merriconeag Road. Such access road shall be deemed to 
be a "Road" hereunder and each Owner shall have the right to use such access road. MRRA 
shall be solely responsible for all costs of the design, permitting and construction of such access 
road, except to the extent one of the other Owners may request that MRRA construct additional 
adjacent improvements to benefit the land of such other Owner in which case such improvements 
will be paid for by the requesting pruiy. MRRA, or its designated successor as owner or tenant 
of the West Base Development Parcel, will be responsible for the maintenance and plowing of 
said access road and will indemnify Bowdoin and the Town against all claims, actions, injuries, 
losses, damages and costs, including without limitation, attorneys' fees, arising from or in any 
manner related to the construction of the portion of such access road located on Bowdoin's land 
or the Town's land, as applicable. 

6. Access to MRRA Utilities. MRRA shall have the right to enter po11ions of the 
Prope1ty owned by Bowdoin or the Town as reasonably necessary for the repair, replacement 
and maintenance of the MRRA Utilities, provided that such entry shall be at the sole risk of 
MRRA and it shall have no claims against any Owner for any claims arising out of such entry. 
To the extent that such entry requires the use of vehicles or equipment off of the Roads, or 
othe1wise disturbs the surface of the ground, MRRA shall be responsible for restoring the surface 
of the ground to its condition prior to such entry and for repairing any damage caused by such 

3 



entry. If MRRA shall decide to abandon any of the MRRA Utilities, it shall so notify the 
applicable Owner or Owners and shall remove any portions thereof to the extent requested by the 
applicable Owner. 

7. Notices and Contractor Insurance. Prior to performing any excavation, repaving 
or alteration or improvement work relating to any Roads or MRRA Utilities on any Prope1ty 
other than its own land, the Owner proposing to unde1take such work shall notify the Owner that 
owns the applicable Prope1ty with a detailed description of the applicable work and timing 
thereof. If requested by the Owner, plans and specifications describing the proposed work shall 
be provide to the applicable Owner for its approval, which shall not be umeasonably withheld .. 
Such notice requirements shall not apply to regular snow plowing or minor maintenance 
activities such as filling pot holes. Each Owner performing such work shall cause its contractors 
to maintain during such periods of its activity liability insurance issued in a fmm acceptable to 
the applicable Owner, including workers' compensation insurance and commercial general 
liability insurance, naming the Owner as an additional insured. Certificates evidencing the 
required insurance shall be delivered to the Owner prior to commencement of any such work. 

8. Pe1mits and Liens. Each Owner undertaking any improvements permitted by this 
Agreement shall be responsible for obtaining all necessary governmental permits and approvals 
and providing all .notices to governmental authorities required by applicable law. Evidence of 
compliance with the foregoing requirement shall be provided to any other Owner at its request. 
Each Owner shall take any action necessary to prevent its actions h~reunder from creating any 
mechanics ' or material men's liens encumbering the prope1ty of any Owner, and shall promptly 
discharge any such liens that may be filed. Nothing herein shall be construed to restrain or affect 
in any way the Town's ability and obligation to promulgate and/or enforce zoning or land use 
restrictions, issue or enforce permits, and enforce and police state and town code's and/or 
ordinances, nor shall the Town's paiticipation in this Access Agreement constitute the Town's 
commitment to approve any permit or approval, nor modify or waive any applicable permit or 
land use standard of the Town of Brunswick. 

9. Relocation Rights. Each Owner shall have the right to relocate any Roads or 
MRRA Utilities located on its Property provided that the Owner shall (i) provide MRRA (and 
the other Owner if it shares use of the Road being relocated) advance notice of any such 
relocation together with a plan showing the proposed new location, (ii) design and construct the 
relocated Road or MRRA Utilities so that they will serve their function as effectively as the 
Roads or MRRA Utilities that are being replaced, (iii) perform such relocation work and 
transition from the existing Road or utilities to the replacements so that there is no interruption in 
access or service to the prope1ties served thereby. 

10. Trails. The approved Reuse Master Plan for the Prope1ty includes pedestrian 
walkways or bicycle trails over the Property ("Trails") as part of a circumferential trail system of 
the former base prope1ty. The Owners are committed to the commencing the establishment of 
the trail system on the subject properties within 36 months ofreceiving title. The Town and 
Bowdoin will share plans for the trail design with MRRA prior to the establishment of the Trails. 
The patties agree that some of such Trails may be located at the same location as p01tions of the 
Roads for so long as the expected traffic levels on such po1tions of the Roads are low enough 
that such simultaneous use as Trails is reasonable. Periodically at the request of any Owner, the 
Owners shall consider whether motor vehicle traffic might be prohibited or restricted on pmtions 

4 



of the Roads in order to facilitate such use as Trails and a possible permanent conversion of such 
p01iions from use as a Road to use as a Trail provided that continued use by vehicles shall be 
permitted when necessary for maintenance of the MRRA Utilities. 

11 . Reciprocal Easement Agreement. Reference is made to a ce1iain Agreement 
Granting Reciprocal Easement for Ingress and Egress, General Access, and Utility Service 
executed by MRRA and the Government, dated March 28, 2011 and recorded in the Cumberland 
County Registry of Deeds in Book 28607, Page 206 (the "Reciprocal Agreement"). The Town, 
Bowdoin and MRRA each agree that as among themselves and their respective successors and 
assigns as owners of any portion of the West Base, their respective rights and obligations related 
to the roads and utility lines on the West Base shall be governed by the provisions of this Access 
Agreement rather than the provisions of the Reciprocal Agreement. The agreement set forth in 
this paragraph shall become applicable to each portion of the West Base that is not currently 
owned by the Town, Bowdoin or MRRA immediately upon the conveyance to such portion of 
the West Base by the Government to the Town, Bowdoin or MRRA. If the Government (or 
persons, other than the parties hereto, having the benefit of the Reciprocal Easement Agreement) 
insist that the parties hereto observe the provisions of the Reciprocal Agreement, the parties 
hereto shall comply with said provisions. The parties also acknowledge that this Agreement 
does not constitute an amendment or modification of the Reciprocal Agreement. 

12. Miscellaneous. This Agreement may be signed in several counterpaiis, but all when 
taken together shall constitute a single document when executed by all Owners. This Agreement 
shall not constitute the agreement of the Owners until such time as all Owners have executed it. 
With respect to any po1iions of the Prope1iy that have not yet been conveyed by the Government 
to one of the Owners, this Agreement shall become effective as to such portions immediately 
upon the applicable future conveyance thereof without any fmiher actions by the paiiies. Each 
Owner acknowledges and agrees that no representations or promises have been made to or relied 
upon by either of them or by any person acting for or on their behalf in connection with the 
subject matter of this Agreement which are not specifically set forth herein. This Agreement 
shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Owners, their respective successors, 
heirs, legal representatives, officers, employees, agents and assigns . This Agreement and all 
documents and instruments executed in connection herewith or in ftniherance hereof may not be 
amended, modified or supplemented except by an instrument in writing signed by all Owners 
hereto. Each Owner agrees to execute such further and additional documents, instruments and 
writings as may be necessary, proper, required, desirable or convenient for the purpose of fully 
effectuating the te1ms and provisions of this Agreement. This Agreement is the product of 
negotiations between the Owners who have been represented by counsel. No Owner shall be 
considered as the drafter of this Agreement. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the 
State of Maine. Nothing herein shall be deemed to be the dedication nor the acceptance of any 
interest in any road or property described herein by or to the Town of Brunswick under Chapter 
304 of Title 23 of the Maine Revised Statutes. 

[signatures on following page] 

5 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the owners have executed this Agreement as of the date first 
above written. 

Witness /1 
<-!Anf &l!.1 µ E Ae~1 AIA:IV-D 

6 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 

BOWDOIN COLLEGE 

MIDCOAST REGIONAL 
REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 



STATE OF MAINE 
CUMBERLAND, SS. April _, 2013 

Then personally appeared before me, S. Catherine Longley, as Senior Vice President for 
Finance and Administration and Treasurer OF BOWDOIN COLLEGE, and acknowledged the 
foregoing instrwnent to be her free act and deed in her said capacity and the free act and deed of 
Bowdoin College. 

Notary Public/Attorney at Law 

Typed/Printed Name 

4374970 



Exhibit A 

Deeds from Government to MRRA: 

1. Deed from the Government to MRRA dated September 30, 2011 and recorded in the 
Cumberland County Registry of Deeds in Book 29003, Page 3 (Phase I Main Base . 
Parcels) 

2. Deed from the Government to MRRA dated September 30, 2011 and recorded in the 
Cumberland County Registry of Deeds in Book 29003, Page 167 (Phase II Main Base 
Housing Parcels). 

3. Deed from the Government to MRRA dated September 30, 2011 and recorded in the 
Cumberland County Registry of Deeds in Book 290043, Page l 73 (Phase IV Utility 
Parcels) . 

4. Deed from the Government to MRRA dated March 14, 2012 and recorded in the 
Cumberland County Registry of Deeds in Book 29437, Page 1 (Phase VI Main Base 
Parcels). 

5. Deed from the Government to MRRA dated March 14, 2012 and recorded in the 
Cumberland County Registry of Deeds in Book 29438, Page 2 (Airport Parcel 2) . 

6 .. Deed from the Government to MRRA dated June 27, 2012 and recorded in the 
Cumberland County Registry of Deeds in Book 29754, Page I (Phase VII Main Base 
Parcels). 

Parcels expected to be conveyed by Government to MRRA: 

1. Rapcon Tower Site - 5.74 Acres 

2. Parcel A-1 east of Rapcon Tower Site - 4.76 Acres 

Deeds from Government to Bowdoin: 

1. Deed from the Government to Bowdoin dated , 2013 and recorded in the -----· 
Cumberland County Registry of Deeds in Book , Page _ (Parcel EDU-BC-1) 

2. Deed from the Government to Bowdoin dated , 20 J 3 and recorded in the -----· 

Cumberland County Registry of Deeds in Book , Page _ (Parcel EDU-BC-2) 

Parcels expected to be conveyed by Government to Bowdoin: 

1. Parcel EDU-BC-3 - 131.62 Acres (which includes the area of Parcels 3A and 3B) 

2. Bowdoin Parcel 3A Fonner Munitions Bunker West Parcel - 4.34 Acres 

7 



3. Bowdoin Parcel 3B Quarry Site - 7.14 Acres 

4. Bowdoin Parcel EDU-BC-4 Transmitter Site - 3.01 acres 

5. Bowdoin Parcel EDU-BC-5 Radar Site - 0.92 Acres 

Deeds from Government to the Town: 

As of date of thi s Agreement the Department of the Navy has assigned the property to the 
Department of the Interior but no deeds have yet been executed and delivered. 

Parcels expected to be conveyed to Town: 

1. Town Parcel A - 68.02 Acres 

2. Town Parcel B - 6.86 Acres 

3. Town Parcel C-25.89 Acres 

4. Town Parcel 0 - 36.89 Acres (consisting of 32.13Acres to be conveyed by the 
Government and 4.76 Acres to be conveyed by MRRA) 

8 



Legend 

$ Monitoring Well 

• Pad-Mounted Transformer 

e Pole-Mounted Transformer 

- Abandoned Fuel Pipeline 

- Base Boundary 

-- Electrical Lines 

-- Fiber Optic Lines 

-- Sewer Lines 

-- Abandoned Steam Lines 

-- Storm Lines 

---· Water Line 

-- Natural Gas 

,--., JR, POL, and 
'---I MRP Sites and AOPls 

D Building 

Parcel Recipients 

- Bowdoin College 

MRRAAirport 

AIR-2 Parcel ID 

2,000 

Feet 

FEATURES MAP (WEST) 

FOST 2011 -4 TRANSFER PARCELS 

AIR-2 AND EDU-BC-3 

FORMER NAVAL AIR STATION BRUNSWICK 

BRUNSWICK, MAINE 

Note: Utility Line locations are 
approximate and must be field 
verified prior to any subsurface work. 

SCALE 

AS NOTED 
FILE 

G;\.\NASB_FOST_201 t_ • _FIGB-4.MXO 

REV DATE 

0 09/13/1 1 

FIGURE NUMBER 

B-4 



~----



 
 

 
ITEM 43 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



	

	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 April	22,	2015	
	
RE:	 Permits	and	Fees	for	Street	Openings,	Street	Entrances,		
	 and	Street	Obstruction	
	 	
	
Attached	is	a	draft	of	amendments	to	the	Town	of	Brunswick’s	Code	of	Ordinances.		These	
amendments	would	address	three	areas:	street	openings,	street	entrances,	and	street	obstruction.			
	
Street	Openings	
	
Street	openings	and	excavations	have	been	regulated	by	ordinance	for	many	years.		However,	the	
street	opening	permit	fee	has	been	$8	for	as	long	as	anyone	can	remember.		Generally,	these	
permits	require	Public	Works	to	inspect	the	work.		The	fees	should	be	adjusted	to	recover	more	of	
the	inspection	costs.		The	amendment	also	proposes	to	substantially	increase	the	fee	for	excavation	
during	the	winter	months.		The	proposed	fee	for	winter	excavation	is	to	recognize	the	extra	
attention	required	in	reviewing	work	conducted	during	those	months.	
	
Street	Entrances	
	
Brunswick’s	Code	of	Ordinances	has	been	silent	about	the	specifications	and	permit	fees	for	
driveways	and	other	entrances	to	the	public	way.		Public	Works	has	been	informally	regulating	
those	entrances	and	believes	a	better	practice	would	be	to	codify	the	site	distance,	geometric	and	
other	design	criteria.		Again,	because	an	inspection	is	generally	required,	we	believe	that	a	permit	
fee	is	an	appropriate	way	to	recover	a	portion	of	the	cost.		Currently,	Brunswick	does	not	charge	for	
entrance	permits.	
	
Street	Obstruction	
	
Work	on	buildings	and	other	property	will	often	require	vehicles,	materials,	and	staging	to	occupy	
the	public	right	of	way.		In	those	instances,	jobsites	can	impede	vehicular	and	pedestrian	traffic.		
Those	sites	often	also	require	additional	attention	from	Public	Works	crews	and	public	safety	
personnel.		The	proposed	fee	attempts	to	recover	some	of	the	costs	associated	with	those	activities.		
We	believe	it	will	also	provide	an	incentive	to	minimize	the	obstruction	of	the	Town’s	streets	and	
sidewalks.	
	
In	addition	to	the	proposed	ordinance	amendments,	a	memo	from	the	Town	Engineer	as	well	as	a	
survey	of	fees	that	was	compiled	in	the	summer	of	2014	are	attached.		However,	in	developing	the	
proposed	amendments,	the	Town	Engineer	reviewed	a	number	of	other	municipal	ordinances	and	
fees.		The	proposed	amendments	reflect	that	work	as	well.	
	



J.	Eldridge	Memo	 	 	 April	22,	2015	
Street	Permits	

Memo	Street	Permits	042215.docx	 2	

While	we	recommend	moving	these	amendments	to	a	public	hearing,	the	Council	may	want	to	
consider	sending	them	to	the	Finance	Committee	for	additional	review.	
	
	
Attachments	



 

 

    Page 1 

ARTICLE IV. ‐ EXCAVATION  

FOOTNOTE(S): 

--- (2) ---  

Cross reference— Buildings and building regulations, Ch. 5; utilities, Ch. 16. (Back) 

State Law reference— Excavations, 23 M.R.S.A. § 3351 et seq. (Back) 

Sec. 14‐71. ‐ Permit required.  

Any person desiring to make an excavation in any public way shall first obtain an excavation permit 
from the public works director. All such excavations are governed by 23 M.R.S.A. § 3351 et seq. and this 
article.  

(Ord. of 8-5-85, § 1)  

Sec. 14‐72. ‐ Time of issue restricted.  

Except in an emergency as determined by the public works director, no street or sidewalk opening 
permit shall be issued permitted between November 1 and March 15 of the following year.  

(Ord. of 8-5-85, § 2)  

Sec. 14‐73. ‐ Fee schedule.  

An application fee of eight dollars ($8.00)  one hundred dollars ($100.00) shall be paid for the 
issuance of an excavation permit.  If the excavation work is approved by the public works director to take 
place between November 1 and March 15 of the following year. or the excavation work is approved to 
take place within the five year moratorium period from when the street was most recently resurfaced, the 
application fee is five hundred dollars ($500.00), A separate application is required for each utility 
excavation.  Where the excavation work obstructs the public way a separate Obstruction Permit as 
detailed in this chapter, Section 14-82, is required before the start of any work relating to this excavation 
permit.  In addition to the application fee, an inspection fee of fifty dollars ($50.00) per application is 
required.  Where the excavation permit involves a utility line replacement or installation in excess of 50 
feet then the inspection fee is computed as one dollar ($1.00) per foot for open cut trench work or fifty 
cents ($0.50) per foot for directional drilling, times the estimated utility line length as determined by the 
public works director.  plus tThe following charges which are hereby established as being not in excess of 
the reasonable cost of replacement of the openings in the public way by the public works department 
must be paid by the permittee if the public works director determines the restoration of the excavation is 
to be done by public works crews:  

Excavation Charges per Square Yard   Up to 

25 Sq. Yds. 

Over 

25 Sq. Yds.  

Bituminous concrete 4″or more in depth  $35.00$ 45.00  $31.00$ 35.00 

Bituminous concrete less than 4″ in depth    25.00$ 40.00    21.00$ 30.00 

Bituminous concrete over portland cement concrete    39.00$ 50.00    35.00$ 40.00 

Bituminous treated surface or shoulder    13.00$ 40.00    11.00$ 30.00 



 

 

    Page 2 

Plain gravel surface      4.00$ 10.00      4.00$ 10.00 

Bituminous concrete sidewalk    19.00$ 40.00    17.00$ 30.00 

Portland cement concrete sidewalk    27.00$ 35.00    25.00$ 33.00 

Grass esplanade or median strip    13.00$ 20.00    13.00$ 20.00 

Bituminous concrete curbing  $  8.0015.00 per linear foot 

Granite curbing—Removal or realignment    20.00$ 30.00 per linear foot 

Granite curbing—Installation of new material    35.00$ 45.00 per linear foot 

 (Ord. of 8-5-85, § 3)  

Sec. 14‐74. ‐ Minimum charge.  

There is a minimum charge equivalent to three (3) square yards for any opening, to be assessed at 
the appropriate unit rate above. For curbing, the charge is assessed for what is actually destroyed or 
damaged.  

(Ord. of 8-5-85, § 4)  

Sec. 14‐75. ‐ Measurement of openings.  

Where two (2) or more street openings are made in sequence, and adjacent openings are fifteen 
(15) feet or less from center to center, the responsible party shall be charged for one (1) opening 
measured from the leading edge of the first opening to the trailing edge of the last opening.  

(Ord. of 8-5-85, § 5)  

Sec. 14‐76. ‐ Private contractor.  

The excavator may request the town's permission to contract privately for the repairs to the public 
way. The town manager may require him to post a performance bond. All work must be performed in a 
good, workmanlike manner according to town specifications which reflect proper construction methods 
and materials. It is subject to inspection and approval by the public works director.  

(Ord. of 8-5-85, § 6)  

Sec. 14‐77. ‐ Removal of bituminous concrete.  

When bituminous concrete overlaying portland cement is removed, it must be replaced to grade 
upon completion of the work.  

(Ord. of 8-5-85, § 7)  

Sec. 14‐78. ‐ Excavation of cement surface.  

When an opening is made in a street where the surface is portland cement concrete, the concrete 
must be cut back at least twelve (12) inches beyond the edges of the trench before the new concrete 
patch is replaced. Sufficient reinforcing must be furnished to provide the equivalent of half-inch reinforcing 
steel rods on twelve-inch centers both ways, top and bottom, in the new concrete patch. The concrete in 



 

 

    Page 3 

the new patch must be at least four (4) inches thicker than the existing concrete, and the top surface must 
be finished to conform with the surface of the old concrete. In all cases where there is a hot asphalt 
pavement or premixed bituminous pavement, the edges of the existing pavement must be cut back an 
additional eight (8) inches beyond the edges of the patch before the new, permanent surface is replaced.  

(Ord. of 8-5-85, § 8)  

Sec. 14‐79. ‐ Compacting time required.  

On all ways where permanent pavement has been built, a period of two (2) months must elapse after 
a trench has been backfilled before the permanent surface is replaced, and during this period, a 
temporary surface of premixed bituminous material must be applied. On all other streets the trench must 
be patched with premixed bituminous material as soon as the backfilling has been completed.  

(Ord. of 8-5-85, § 9)  

Sec. 14‐80. ‐ Violation and penalty.  

A person or organization which violates this article shall be punished for each offense by a fine of not 
more than one hundred dollars ($100.00), plus the cost of any applicable fees and charges for the work 
done which remains unpaid. No further permits shall be issued to, and no further excavation work which 
requires a permit shall be done by any person which violates this article until any amounts due have been 
paid. If a private party fails to complete within a reasonable time any work for which an excavation permit 
is required, the town may complete the work and charge the owner of the property for the cost of doing 
so.  

(Ord. of 8-5-85, § 10)  

Secs. 14-81—14-95. - Reserved.Entrances to Public Right-of-Ways 

A. Purpose.  This section provides for the review of any entrance onto a public way for compliance 
with sound construction and design practices, to ensure that traffic safety, drainage and public 
improvements are not adversely affected.  A permit is not required for paving, culvert replacements, 
sealing or repairs to any existing access. 

B. Permit Required.   

1. No driveway, entrance or approach or other improvement within the limits of the right-of-
way for any public road may be constructed, altered or relocated except in accordance with an 
Entrance Permit issued by the Town upon application. 
2. No entrance, approach or other improvement constructed on the right-of-way shall be 
relocated or its dimensions altered without a permit from the Town. 
3. The application fee for each permit is fifty dollars ($50.00) for a driveway serving a single 
family dwelling.  For entrances serving other uses the permit fee is seventy-five dollars ($75.00).  
For lots with multiple entrances, a separate permit is required for each entrance. 
4. The entrance permit shall be valid for a period of twelve (12) months from the date of 
original issue. 
5. The owner served by the entrance is responsible for future maintenance of the entrance 
within the limits of the right-of-way and shall maintain the entrance in accordance with the 
approved permit.  
6. Applicant. The applicant for a permit shall be the owner of the property or authorized 
representative being served. Any driveway or approach constructed by the iwner shall be for the 
bona fide purpose of securing access to the owner's property and not for the purpose of parking 
or servicing vehicles on the right-of-way 
7. The applicant shall hold harmless the Town and its duly authorized agents and 
employees against any action for personal injury or property damage sustained by reason of the 
exercise of an entrance permit. 

  



 

 

    Page 4 

C.  Design Criteria.  

1. Entrances should be designed and constructed to provide safe access to the public way. 
Applicants are encouraged to comply with the "Access Management Rules for Driveways and 
Entrances" as developed by the Maine Department of Transportation, latest edition. 

2. Sight Distance Criteria: 

a.  All entrances shall be so located such that vehicles approaching or using the 
entrance will be able to obtain adequate sight distance in both directions along the public 
way or to maneuver safely and without interference with traffic. 

b. Measurements to determine sight distance shall be made in the proposed 
entrance at a point ten (10') feet from the edge of pavement with the height of eye three 
and one half (3.5') feet above the pavement. The sight distance shall be computed from 
this point measuring along the roadway to a point where an approaching height of object 
four and one quarter (4.25') feet is first seen. 

c. Driveway placement shall be such that an existing vehicle has an unobstructed 
sight distance according to the following schedule: 

Highway Speed 
(MPH) 

Minimum Sight  
Distance (in feet) 

25 200 
30 250 
35 305 
40 360 
45 425 
50 495 
55 570 

3. Geometry: 

a. The entrance shall be designed such that the grade within the right-of-way does 
not exceed 10%. 

b. For uncurbed public ways the entrance shall in general slope away from the road 
surface at a rate of not less than one quarter inch (1/4") per foot, nor more than one inch 
per foot (1"/12”) for a distance of not less than the prevailing width of the existing 
shoulder, but in no case less than four (4) feet from the edge of pavement. 

c. The entrance should intersect the traveled way at a horizontal angle of ninety 
(90) degrees but in no case shall the horizontal angle be less than seventy-five (75) 
degrees. 

d. No part of the entrance shall extend beyond the property lot frontage for the lot 
being served. 

e. The entrance shall not be located close to an intersection and should be back at 
least fifty (50) feet. 

5. Drainage: 

a. Existing roadside drainage in gutter or ditch lines shall not be altered or impeded 
by the applicant. The applicant must provide at his/her expense suitable and approved 
drainage structures at all entrances. 

b. Surface drainage shall be provided so that all surface water on the areas 
adjacent to the road shall be carried away from the roadway. 



 

 

    Page 5 

c. Where a drainage culvert is required to maintain roadside drainage the Town 
must approve the pipe diameter/length and type pipe material prior to installation. In any 
case, the pipe size shall be at least twelve (12) inches in diameter. 

6. Construction: 

a. The owner is responsible for all construction and restoration of disturbed areas 
for the entrance within the limits of the right-of-way. 

b. The entire portion of any entrance within the limits of the right-of-way shall be 
constructed with a minimum fifteen inch (15”) well-graded gravel base course (Maine 
Department of Transportation Type C). 

c. If the entrance grade within the right-of-way exceeds five percent (5%) slope then 
the entrance shall have a paved surface within the limits of the right-of-way. 

7. Curb and Sidewalk: 

a. When sidewalk or curb exists at the proposed entrance the applicant shall 
remove and replace such materials at the applicant's expense. Any granite curb to be 
removed by the applicant will remain the property of the Town. 

b. Where curb exists, curb tip-downs shall be provided at each side of a new 
entrance. 

c. Where sidewalk is removed to accommodate a new entrance a new walk surface 
of equal type construction is to be provided. The sidewalk area at all entrances is to meet 
accessibility requirements and conform to the American with Disabilities Act guidelines. In 
general sidewalks shall meet the following: 

1.) The maximum sidewalk longitudinal transition slope is not to exceed one 
(1) vertical to twelve (12) horizontal. 

2.) The maximum sidewalk cross-slope is not to exceed two percent (2%). 

3.) No abrupt changes in grade are permitted and the maximum curb reveal 
crossing a walkway is one-half inch (1/2) or less. 

Secs. 14-82 Obstruction Permit 

A. Permit Required 

No person shall obstruct any street or sidewalk by erecting any staging for building, or place or 
deposit any construction equipment or building materials thereon, or otherwise occupy, obstruct 
or encumber the public way for the purpose of facilitating construction or maintenance activities, 
without first obtaining an “Obstruction Permit” from the public works director or designee for that 
purpose.  A permit is not required for normal commercial delivery vehicles providing inventory and 
goods sold or consumed at the site or for special event activities as approved by the Town. 

B. Application Required 

Applications for permits should be submitted in complete form at least 5 business days before the 
desired obstruction date. 

C. Restriction or Revocation of Permit 

The town reserves the right to reject any obstruction permit or restrict the duration and timing of 
any obstruction permits where it deems necessary or appropriate to protect public health and 
safety.  The town may revoke a permit when it deems appropriate due to any site issues that may 
develop that adversely impact or create a hardship to the public. 

D. Fee Schedule: The base application fee is tend dollars ($10.00) plus the following as applicable 

1. Occupying any parking stalls located within a time restricted area is fifteen dollars ($15.00) 
per day per stall. 



 

 

    Page 6 

2. Occupying any area where un-restricted parking is permitted is ten dollars ($10.00) per day. 

3. Occupying a travel lane is fifteen dollars ($15.00) perday. 

4. Occupying part of a sidewalk where sufficient sidewalk area remains to accommodate 
pedestrians (48 inches) or a temporary sidewalk area is provided to safely re-route 
pedestrians around the obstruction is ten dollars ($10.00) per day. 

5. Occupying all of a sidewalk requiring pedestrians to detour and use an alternate route: 
twenty-five ($25.00) per day. 

6. Occupying a street requiring the closure of the street to traffic is one hundred dollars 
($100.00) for up to four (4) hours or two hundred dollars ($200.00) per day. 

7. Failure to obtain in advance an Obstruction Permit shall result in the following charges: 
twenty five dollars ($25.00) for the first occurrence and one hundred dollars for the second 
occurrence and two hundred fifty dollars ($250.00) for the third and each subsequent second 
occurrence, 

8. Should the actual duration of the obstruction area increase from what the applicant originally 
indicated and paid then the applicant will promptly pay for such overage upon notification by 
the Town.  The maximum fee for an obstruction will be capped at two hundred dollars 
($200.00) per month for items 1 thru 5 above. 

E. Application.  The applicant shall provide on proscribed forms the following information: 

1. Exact location of work 

2. Proposed limits of obstructed area (submit a site plan to scale if deemed necessary by public 
works director). 

3. Duration of closure 

4. Anticipated working hours 

5. Responsible names with contact information for emergency site representatives, if needed, 
during non-work hours 

6. Provisions for maintaining traffic flow 
In most cases, the applicant will be required to submit a maintenance and protection of traffic 
plan (MPT). The MPT should address advance warning signs, barricades around work area, 
and proposed detours. Plans should consider pedestrian needs in addition to vehicular traffic.  

7. Proof of liability insurance  

a) Commercial general liability insurance, including contractual liability insurance with a limit 
of at least $1,000,000.00 per occurrence and a least $2,000,000 general annual 
aggregate limit; and  

b) Automobile liability insurance with a limit of at least $1,000,000 for each occurrence 

F. Obstruction Permit Criteria 

1. All work is to be carried out during normal weekday only constructions.  No work is to start 
before 7:00 a.m. and all work is to end by 7:00 p.m. unless otherwise approved in advance.   

2. The applicant shall insure that the location of the obstruction is maintained in a neat and 
orderly fashion. 

3. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to secure the perimeter of the obstructed area as 
may be necessary for pedestrian and vehicular safety. Applicant shall be responsible for 
installing and maintaining signage, jersey barriers, fencing, barricades and the like as 
deemed necessary by the applicant or the public works director. Temporary or relocated 
pedestrian access shall meet the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act. 

 
Secs. 14-83—14-95. - Reserved.  



Brunswick Public Works Dept 
9 Industry Rd 
BRUNSWICK  ME   04011 
207.725.6654 
FAX 725.6655 
 

Memorandum 
 

 TO: John Eldridge, Town Manager   
 

 FROM: John A. Foster, Town Engineer/Dir. PWD  
 

 DATE: 10 April, 2015 
 

 SUBJECT: Possible Permit Fee Changes 
 

 
As requested, we have reviewed our permit fees for various permits we oversee and 
offer the below recommendations to update our fee schedules.  For reference 
purposes the following is a quick summary of the permits we have processed in the 
last six years for each type.  
 

Calendar 
Year 

Street Opening 
Permits 

Processed 

Entrance 
Permits 

Processed 
2009 149 15 
2010 168 24 
2011 167 13 
2012 153 13 
2013 199 19 
2014 215 25 

Average 175 18 

 
1. Entrance Permit.  We currently do not have an application fee for an 

Entrance Permit (an entrance permit covers a new, relocated or widened 
driveway opening to a public street).   

a. The Town of Topsham charges $10/permit, City of Bath charges 
$50/permit and Town of Freeport charges $150/permit. 

b. For the Town of Brunswick I would recommend the following rate 
structure: 

i. Residential driveway permit: $50.00 
ii. Commercial driveway permit: $75.00 

c. We will also need to develop and enact an ordinance that specifically 
spells out the entrance permit process and requirements as part of 
establishing a permit fee structure 

2. Street Opening Permit.  We currently charge $8.00 for each street opening 
permit application.   

a. The Town of Topsham charges $20/application, City of Bath charges 
$50/application ($500 for winter time application) and the Town of 
Freeport charges $150/application and limits excavation permits only 
to licensed contractors.  The contractor is required to apply and pay an 
annual fee of $180 to be licensed.  Freeport also charges 

Brunswick Public Works Dept 



  April 10, 2015 

  Page 2 

$900/application to open a street in the winter months (November 15 
thru March 31). 

b. There are also fees assessed by most communities if they are to do 
the restoration work and are usually either not assessed or refunded if 
the contractor satisfactorily does the work.  We do have a fee structure 
in place for this option but for my tenure, we have never assessed the 
restoration fee as we always opt for the opening to be fully restored by 
the applicant to our specifications. 

c. One perplexing issue is when utilities, particularly Maine Natural Gas 
extend their main line facilities down the entire length of the street.  
Right now we only charge them $8 for that work.  I have yet to find how 
other communities do this much differently but would like to research 
that issue further. 

d. For the Town of Brunswick I would recommend the following rate 
structure: 

i. Street Opening Permit Application Fee: $100.00 
ii. Wintertime Street Opening Permit Fee: $500.00 
iii. Inspection Services per utility connection 

or single opening: $50.00 
iv. Inspection Services for utility line  

replacements or extensions: $50.00 (min.) 
  + $1.00/l.f. 

e. Currently we have no requirement for a permit to connect to the public 
storm drain and I would recommend we establish such a permit fee.  
We can certainly research what other communities may charge but I 
would recommend a charge of $50.00 for a single connection to the 
town storm drain lines and this could be incorporated into the Street 
Opening Permit rules. 

3. Street Occupancy Permits.  I would recommend we consider implementing 
a new permit process to cover occupancy of the street for the purposes of 
blocking parking spaces, sidewalks or travel lanes to allow work to take place 
that is not part of an excavation permit.  This permit would relate to such 
activities as when a contractor wants to park equipment in a parking space or 
store materials there, block a sidewalk to erect staging for related 
improvements on the abutting property, etc.  We would need to develop an 
ordinance covering these type activities and setting forth a fee structure.  I 
have attached the ordinance section from the City of Portland and they 
presently charge $15/parking space/pay day for such activities.   

  

The above has been prepared for discussion purposes as you requested and we can 
proceed with actual ordinance amendment language on any or all of the above as 
you determine to be appropriate.  Let me know how you want us to proceed. 
 
 
 
C:\Users\jfoster\Dropbox\PDF\Documents\PermitFeesRecommendations.doc 



Street Opening Permit Fees 
Local Communities 

1 
July 21, 2014 

 

 

Bath 

1. $25.00    Permit Fee 

2. $500.00   Winter Excavation (non‐emergency) 

3. $250.00   Excavating without Permit 

4. 150%    Town’s  cost of correction (No action by permittee) 

Topsham 

1. $20.00    Permit Fee 

2. $250.00   Excavating without Permit 

3. 150%    Town’s  cost of correction (No action by permittee) 

To promote the use of tunneling, jacking, and boring technologies, permanent restoration and 

moratorium/remaining life fees will not be assessed to any excavation area achieved by these 

technologies, which does not result in pavement damage. 

Freeport 

1. $180.00  License Fee (Yearly) 

2. $150.00  Application Fee 

3. Surety bond equal to estimated cost 

4. $900.00  Winter Opening Permit 

5. Final area to be measured by the Town and billed, 10% retained.

 



Street Opening Permit Fees 
Local Communities 

2 
July 21, 2014 

 

 

Gorham 

1. $100.00    License Fee 

2. $25.00      Application Fee 

3. $50.00      Application Fee (Major Excavation) 

4. SqYd estimate    Temporary restoration (4” of Cold or Hot mix) 

5. SqYd measured   Final restoration by Town 

6. 105% or $20,000  Performance Bond 

 

Augusta 

1. $18.00 sqyd    Paved areas, concrete and brick surfaces 

2. $6.00 sqyd    Non‐paved areas, including gravel and grass 

3. $2.00 lnft    Pipe≥ 6” installed by drilling 

4. $1.00 Inft    Pipe≤ 6” installed by drilling 

 

Lewiston 

1. $526.00    Permit (good for 1 calendar year) 

2. $53.00      Permit (single occurrence) 

3. See Appendix 1 

 

Auburn 

1. See Appendix 2 



 
 

 
ITEM 44 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 





 
 

 
ITEM 45 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



By-laws approved by Brunswick Cable TV Advisory Committee 5/8/03  
Charge approved 3/6/03 by Brunswick Town Council 

 

Article I:  Name 

 

The committee’s name shall be the Cable TV Advisory Committee; a committee appointed by 

the Brunswick Town Council.  

 

Article II:  Charge 

 

The purpose of the committee is to propose policies and advise the Town Council on the 

operation and management of access and programming on the community Access Channels 

provided to the Town under the provisions of the Cable Franchise Agreement. This committee is 

also responsible for monitoring Cable franchisee’s overall compliance with the franchise 

agreement and for other related matters as are set forth in the committee's guidelines. 

 

Article III:  Members 

 

Membership on the committee shall be as directed by the Town Council.  Membership is as 

follows: 

 

One representative from the Town Council 

One representative from the Cable Company 

One representative from the School Board 

One representative from the LibrarySchool Department 

Five representatives at large 

 

The Town of Brunswick IT Cable Manager shall serve as staff assistant to the committee and 

should attend committee meetings when possible. 

 

Article IV:  Officers 

 

Officers of the Committee shall be as follows: 

 

Chairperson 

Vice Chairperson 

 

Officers are elected by a majority vote of the committee and their term of office is one year. 

 

Article V:  Meetings 

 

Meetings shall be held at a time mutually agreed upon by the membership of the Committee.  A 

quorum shall consist of a majority of the members.  A quorum is required for a meeting to be 

held. 

 



Article VI:  Sub-committees 

 

The committee shall appoint such sub-committees as may be necessary to support its work. 

 

Article VII:  Agenda 

 

At least one week prior to committee scheduled meetings; the Chairperson shall distribute a copy 

of the meeting’s agenda. At such times as needed, the Chairperson may call emergency meetings, 

giving reasonable notice to members. 

 

Article VIII:  Order of Business 

 

Conduct of the meeting shall be in accordance with Roberts Rules of Order and will adhere to the 

following format: 

 

A.  Call to Order 

B.  Reading and Approval of Minutes 

C.  Reading of Communications 

D.  Reports 

E.  Unfinished Business 

F.  New Business 

G.  Adjournment 

 

Article IX:  Access and Records 

 

In accordance with MRSA Title I ArticleSections 403 & 404, the meeting shall be open to the 

public. Whenever practical, the meeting shall be cablecast on the access TV Channel. The 

committee shall maintain minutesa record of itseach meeting and these minutesrecords shall be 

availableopen to the public to read and copyinspection.  

 

Article X:  Amendment of By-Laws 

 

Proposed changes to the by-laws shall be presented to committee meetings and voted upon at a 

subsequent meeting. Approval of two thirds (2/3) of the committee is required. 



 
 

 
ITEM 46 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



	

Memo	TIGER	Grant	042015.docx	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 April	21,	2015	
	
RE:	 Transportation	Investment	Generating	Economic	Recovery	(TIGER)	Grants	
	 	
	
	
	
As	I	mentioned	at	the	April	16th	special	meeting	of	the	Town	Council,	the	U.S.	Department	of	
Transportation	(“DOT”)	announced	that	$500	million	will	be	made	available	for	transportation	
projects	across	the	country	under	a	seventh	round	of	the	TIGER	competitive	grant	program.		
According	to	the	DOT,	“The	TIGER	2015	grant	program	will	continue	to	make	transformative	
surface	transportation	investments	by	providing	significant	and	measurable	improvements	over	
existing	conditions.		The	grant	program	will	focus	on	capital	projects	that	generate	economic	
development	and	improve	access	to	reliable,	safe	and	affordable	transportation	for	disconnected	
both	urban	and	rural,	while	emphasizing	improved	connection	to	employment,	education,	services	
and	other	opportunities,	workforce	development,	or	community	revitalization.”	
	
For	purposes	of	this	program,	Brunswick	is	designated	as	rural	and,	as	such,	is	eligible	for	100%	
project	funding	(i.e.	no	match	required).		The	Town	may	submit	up	to	three	applications,	with	each	
application	requesting	no	less	than	$1	million.		In	order	to	submit	an	application,	pre‐applications	
must	be	submitted	on	line	by	May	4,	2015.		Final	applications	would	be	due	on	June	5,	2015.		Town	
staff	has	identified	the	following	projects	for	which	it	intends	to	file	an	on	line	pre‐application:	
	

 Androscoggin	River	Bike	and	Pedestrian	Path	‐	$2.2	million	for	the	completion	of	the	
Brunswick	portion	(2.6	miles)		

 Parking	Facility	‐	$5.0	million	to	build	a	200‐stall	parking	facility	on	the	Town	Hall	parking	
lot	

	
I	have	attached	a	TIGER	Program	fact	sheet.		Additional	information	may	be	obtained	at	
http://www.dot.gov/tiger	
	
	
	
attachment	



T I G E R  G r a n t s  O v e r v i e w  

 

 

IGER (Transportation Investment Generating Economic Recovery) Grants provide a unique 
opportunity for the DOT to invest in road, rail, transit, bicycle/pedestrian, port, and multi-
modal projects that achieve critical national objectives. Since 2009, Congress has dedicated 
more than $4.6 billion for seven rounds to fund competitive projects that have a significant 
impact on the Nation, a region, or a metropolitan area. Through the TIGER program, DOT 
has awarded grants to 342 projects in all 50 States, the District of Columbia, and Puerto Rico. 

 
What makes the TIGER program unique? 
 
Flexibility 
TIGER can provide capital funding directly to any 
public entity, including municipalities, counties, port 
authorities, tribal governments, MPOs, or others in 
contrast to traditional Federal transportation 
programs that provide funding to limited groups of 
applicants (mostly State DOTs and transit agencies). 
This flexibility allows our traditional partners at the 
state and local level to work directly with a host of 
entities that own, operate, and maintain much of our 
transportation infrastructure, but otherwise have 
limited ways to receive Federal support. 
 
Innovative Funding 
TIGER’s competitive structure and broad eligibility 
allow project sponsors to develop multi-modal, 
multi-jurisdictional projects that may not be eligible 
for funding through traditional DOT programs. For 
example, in 2009, the TIGER program partnered 
with the State of California (Caltrans) and the San 
Diego Association of Governments (SANDAG)— 
the regional planning agency that represents 18 
cities and county government to award $20.2 million 
to the Otay Mesa Port-of-Entry project– the largest 
freight border crossing between California and 
Mexico – to provide a direct six-lane highway link 
and reduce Interstate congestion. 
 
Leveraging Resources 
TIGER projects have historically achieved, on 
average, co-investment of 3.5 dollars (including 
other Federal, State, local, private and 
philanthropic funds) for every TIGER dollar 
invested. The Razorback Regional Greenway TIGER 
2010 project successfully leveraged $15 million from 
the Walton Family Foundation to support 
development of this 36-mile bicycle and pedestrian 
network in Northwest Arkansas. 

Encouraging Partnership 
The TIGER program encourages States and 
localities to work together to bring more 
innovative, cross-modal proposals to the table. 
Priority is given to transportation projects 
that demonstrate strong collaboration among 
a broad range of participants, integration of 
transportation with other public service 
efforts, and/or projects that are the product of 
a robust planning process. For example, the 
Miami Trail/Everglades Restoration project, 
awarded $20 million in TIGER 2014, has 
extensive stakeholder collaboration and 
support including the National Park Service, 
the US Army Corps of Engineers, State and 
local agencies, and numerous conservation 
advocacy organizations. 
 
Rural Investments 
The TIGER program enables DOT to use a 
rigorous process to select projects with 
exceptional benefits, explore ways to deliver 
projects faster and save on construction costs, 
and make investments in our Nation’s 
infrastructure that make communities more 
livable and sustainable, including in rural 
areas. Since 2009, the TIGER program has 
provided over $790 million to 117 projects in 
rural areas across the United States. 

T 



 

 

T I G E R  P r o j e c t  S p o t l i g h t   
 

 

 
 

Memorial Bridge 
  The Memorial Bridge 
on US Route 1 is the 
only bicycle and 
pedestrian connection 
between NH and ME 
and is located in the 
heart of downtown 
Portsmouth. Before a 
201X TIGER grant, 
the bridge had a 

sufficiency rating of 6 out of 100, safety concerns that 
resulted restricted bridge traffic to no more than 
three tons. A $20 million TIGER grant enabled this 
bridge to resume normal operations and it was 
reopened in August 2013. 
 

 
CREATE 
The Chicago Region Environmental and 
Transportation Efficiency Program, (CREATE) 
partners U.S. DOT, the State of Illinois, the City of 
Chicago, Metra (the region’s commuter rail agency), 
Amtrak, and the Nation's largest freight railroads in 
an approximately $1.5 billion program that includes 
70 intermodal projects that restructure, modernize, 
and expand existing rail facilities to improve freight 
and passenger mobility in and through Chicago while 
reducing negative environmental and social impacts.  
The CREATE $100 million TIGER grant leveraged 
$14 million in State and 
local funding and $48 
million in funding from 
the private railroads. 
CREATE adds capacity 
and reduces delays for 
trains and motorists 
using at-grade 
crossings, and improves 
roadways and 
sidewalks.  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Atlanta Streetcar 
Born from a relationship between the city, local 
businesses, and MARTA (the local transit 
authority), the Atlanta Streetcar project received 
a $47.6 million TIGER grant to construct a new 
east-west streetcar line connecting many of the 
residential, cultural, educational and historic 
centers downtown, improving Atlanta’s quality of 
life and providing enhanced transit options. The 
streetcar, which opened for passenger service in 
December 2014, provides residents, students and 
visitors with easy access to jobs and public 
amenities in the core of downtown Atlanta, and 
serves an economically distressed area, spurring 
pedestrian-oriented development and reinforcing 
development plans. 

 

US-491 Safety Improvements 
US-491 is the primary highway in an extremely 
rural area of northwest New Mexico, connecting 
the Navajo Nation to surrounding areas, and is a 
major trucking route with increasingly high 
volumes of commercial traffic. Prior to 
construction, this stretch of highway experienced 
fatality rates between two and three and a half 
times the state average. A $31 million TIGER 
grant enabled the Navajo DOT to construct two 
additional lanes and to separate north-south 
traffic on this corridor, limiting fatal accidents. 
Additional safety improvements include 
construction of turn lanes for acceleration and 
deceleration, and improved intersections, 
signage, markings, and drainage facilities. 
 


	ca a yes
	ca a April 6, 2015 min
	ca b no
	ca c no
	ca d yes
	ca d quit_20150422121848
	ca e yes
	ca e quit_20150422121925
	ca f yes
	ca f quit_20150422121815
	CA g yes
	ca g  Police Grant Acceptance request to Council
	CA G Forensic Photo Sand-Camera Info
	ca h yes
	ca h A Proclamation for Poem in your pocket day 2014
	ca h b  Poem proclamaiotn 2015
	ca h c  Poem DON’T FORGET TO CELEBRATE2015
	ca i yes
	ca i Brunswick  welcome sign
	mr a to c NO
	mr d on line only
	mr e no
	mr f yes
	mr f GFOA Certificate for 2014
	mr g yes
	mr g mma
	mr h yes
	mr h Memo Growstown School 042015
	mr i yes
	mr i spring_20150422122024
	39 yes
	39 special_20150422122156
	40 yes
	40 ALL Federal street
	41 no
	42 yes
	42 Memo Pine Street Access 042015
	43 yes
	43 street open memo_20150422122248
	44 yes
	44 grant scan0010
	45 yes
	45 Cable TV Committee By-Laws Proposed Changes v1
	46 yes
	46 Memo TIGER Grant 042015



